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Dedication

To my wife,
Sandra,
who’s patience
and tolerance
made this book
possible.
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The Davidson Family

James A. Davidson (Davison) was bom in Ireland in 1788, of Scots parents, and
immigrated to York County, SC in 1798, where he and his brother Andrew were natruralized 19
Oct 1813. Their father was probably also named James, based on land records in York County,

SC., where father and sons resided along the Broad River on ‘Guyon Moore’s Creek. Census

records there indicate the younger James farmed and owned a small distilery. He married Sarah
Love in York County, SC., 6 Nov. 1818. She was born 28 Jan 1896 York Co., SC, died 12 July
1852 Detroit, then Marion County, AL. James died 17 June 1856 at age 68. He and Sarah are
buried in Carter Cemetery at Detroit, now Lamar County.

James and his brother Andrew moved to what is now Detroit , Lamar County, then
Millville, Marion County, probably in the fall of 1840. James settled in Alabama, but had extensive
land holdings in both Alabama (more than 1500 acres in 1850) and Mississippi. Andrew settled in
Itawamba and later Monroe Counties in Mississippi. James was a planter and slave owner, and
he and his son William were merchants and postmasters at Millville (Detroit),

The children of James A. and Sarah Davidson, all bom in York County, SC, were
(1).William W. Davidson born 27 June 1819, died 27 Dec. 1860 age 41, buried Carter Cemetery.
He married Mary Elizabeth Riggan, daughter of Jeremiah Riggan and Elizzbeth Nicholas Egerton
of Splunge, MS on 24 Dec. 1849. After his death she remarried Rev. Jesse Dexter Carter. She

‘was born 11 March 1833 and died 18 June 1905, and is buried in Carter Cemetery as Mary E.

Carter. Their children will be discussed below.

(2) James L. Davidson born 4 Jan 1820, d..s.p. 19 Dec. 1842,
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(3) Mary Caroline Davidson born 1 May 1823, died 18917 Detroit, AL. She married
Benjamin Moody Riggan, son of Jeremiah Riggan and Elizabeth Nicholas Egerton. He was born
1819 in Warren Co., NC, died 1900 at Detroit, AL. Both buried at Carter Cemetery.

Their children included at least Sarah, born 1848, Jemeann born 1850 and Florence Riggan born
1853.

(4) Eleanor Araminta Davidson, “Ellen”, born 24 Aug. 1825, died 21 Dec 1920
Smithville, Monroe County, MS. She married George Etter Wax, son of Henry Etter Wax and
Nancy W. Dickinson 6 Feb 1843, who was bom 1 July 1818 in Greensburg, KY, died 6 Sep.
1876 Smithville, Monroe County, MS. Their children born in Marion (Lamar) County, AL
included Mary Etta Wax born 1845, William Thomas Wax born 5 June 1845 , who married Lucy
Harkney, Laura J. Wax, bomn 1849; Francis R. Wax born 1850 and Sarah Love Wax bom 1852,
Nathaniel Terry Wax, John Andrew Wax, Jennie Wax who married Gaines Davis, Lucien Wax
‘bon 1860; Sarah D. Wax born 1863; Katie Wax born 1866; Ellen Wax, born 1869.

(5) Margaret Jane Davidson born 20 Feb. 1827. Died 30 Nov. 1861. Her father, in his
will, described her as “my crippled daughter.” She apparently married Wlliam H. Riley a short
time before her death..

(6) Thomas Jefferson Davidson born 20 July 1830, married either Rachel ___or Ann
____, or possibly both (or both may refer to the same person). The 1860 census shows her as
Rachel, but deeds in 1858 and 1860 name her as Ann. Their children included John, born 1856
and Georgia born 1858.

(7) John Donahoe Davidson born 14 March 1832. Died in Placer County, CA. Where he

resided by 1860.

(8) Nathaniel Rice Davidson born 14 June 1834, died 188. He is probably the N. R.
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Davidson living with his cousin A. J. Davidson, Jr., a merchant in Smithville, Monroe County,
MS. in the 1860 census.

(9) Sarah Isabella Davidson was born 28 March 1838. She married William F. McFadden
who was born 1829, In 1860 they lived in Itawamba County, MS. Their children included Robert
G. McFadden born 1856, Sarah V. McFadden born 1857; Almira J. McFadden born 1859.

The children of William Wilson Davidson and Mary Elizabeth Riggan were as follows:

(&) George Wilis Davidson bor 7 Nov. 1850 died 26 Aug. 1852. Buried Carter
Cemetery.

(b) Sarah Davidson born 1852, died 1908,

(©) James Andrew Davidson, Planter and Merchant in Detroit, Presidential Elector in
1902, later Hotel Keeper in Guin, AL. Bor 4 Jan. 1853 Detroit, Marion (Lamar) Co., AL. Died
25 June 1920 in Guin, Masion County, AL. Married Elfleda Curtis, daughter of John A. Curtis
and Columbia Bryan of Columbus, MS. Both are buried in the Guin City Cemetery. For their
children see below.

(@) Jeremish Howard Davidson born 17 March 1856, died 14 Aug. 1906 buried Carter
Cemetery. He married Ora Artelia Murray in Detroit, Lamar County, AL, who was bom 25 Dee.
1876 died 20 Feb 1957. Buried in Carter Cemetery. She later married a Tooke. Their children
were Jeremiah Davidson who operated the Westem Auto Store in Sulligent, and still has
daughters residing there, and Orman Davidson who owned a drug store in the English Village
area of Birmingham who married Hattie Lou__.

The following are the children of James A. Davidson and Eifleda Curtis:

() Berta Eugenia “Genie” born 14 Sep. 1886 in Detroit, .5p. 1961 Fayette, AL Buried

Fayette City Cemetery.
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Buried in Sull;igent City Cemetary. Married Dr. Daniel Middleton Sizemore, and old time country

(ii) Lana Arless Davidson born 1888, died 1889 Detroit. Buried Carter Cemetery.

(i) Jessie Curtis Davidson born 4 Aug 1889 Detrot. Died Jan. 1973 in Tallasee, Al

doctor who practiced first in Guin then in Sulligent, Born 1879 in Marion County, Al Died in
Amory, Monroe County, MS 1954. Buried Sulligent.

(iv) Tessye Love Davidson, RN, born 6 Feb. 1891 Detroit, AL. Died 26 Aug 1964 at Oak
Ridge, Tenn. Buried Fayette City Cemetary.

(v) James A. Davidson, Jr. “Jim”. Born 21 June 1892 Detroit, AL. Died in Great Bend,
Kansas. Married Stella Guin.

(vi) William Roy Davidson Born 9 June 1894 Detroit. Died 1994 Kerrville, TX. Married
Willie Gottschalk who was bon in Matagordas, TX.

(vil) Alice Fielder Davidson born 19 March 1896 in Detroit. Died 1 June 1976 in Ordway,
Colorado. Married Daniel Neil Zuber.

(viii) John Bryan Davidson. Born 29 Sept. 1900 Detroit. Died 14 Sept. 1981 in Crestview,
Fla. Buried Vernon, AL City Cemetery. Married Jimmie Nell Roberts 3 Jun 1928 in Vernon. She

died Sept. 1993, Miami, Dade Co., FL. Buried Vemon, AL. .

(i) Grace Lenora Davidson born 25 April 1902 in Detroit, Died 1 March 1974 at
Decatur, Morgan County, AL. Married Walter O. Holliman son of Moses J. and Elizabeth Wilson
Holliman 1 Oct. 1925. He was born 21 Nov. 1899 Fayette Co., AL, died 3 Nov. 1973 at Fayette.
Both are buried in Fayette City Cemetary.

(x) Mary Cooper Davidson born 1904 in Detroit, died 1906 Guin. Buried Carter
Cemetary, Detroit

(xi) Madge Stanley Davidson born 2 June 1906 died 4 Oct. 1979 Fayette. Married Max
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Hammond Branyon son of Dr. Arthur Curtis Branyon and Martha Savannah Wilkerson 18 June
1928 on Birmingham. Both are buried Fayette City Cemetery.

(xii) Norma Lee Davidson born 28 Jul 1909 in Guin, Marion County, died 22 Sept. 994
Panama City, FL married John Seab Espy who died 12 Dec. 1995. They resided in Panama City,
FL.

(xiii) Col. Richard Percy Davidson born 6 March 1911 Guin, AL., Died 2 Jan. 1969

Walter Reed Hospital, Washington, DC. Burial in Greensboro, AL. Married Lutie Foster James.

Submitted by Walt Holliman, 2601 Chandalar Lane, Pelham, AL, 35124. Photo courtesy of
Richard Wax, Amory, MS. Sources: Probate and land records Marion and Lamar Counties, AL.
And Itawamba and Monroe County, MS; Headstones in Carter, Guin City and Fayette City
Cemeteries, Genealogical notes of Margaret Davidson Sizemore Douglas, Atlanta, GA; Wax-

Burdine Family Records of Richard Wax, Amory, MS; U. S. Bureau of Land Magemet Records;

York County, SC Court of General Sessions and Land Records; U. S. Census Records.
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Chapter

1

The Davidson Ancestors

Most of our immigrant ancestors first landed in either
virginia or Maryland. Some then went into southern Pennsylvania,
or from virginia into Maryland, while others remained in Virginia
or Maryland for a time. In the mid-1700’s they began to move
southward along the Great Wagon Road, some stopping in North
carolina, but most continued into the northern part of South
Carolina before eventually heading west for Alabama and
Mississippi.

Generally Westward Migration was impeded first by governmeat
restrictions on movement into Indian Lands, and later by the
mountains and the Indians themselves. When Westward settlement
did began, generally during or at the end of the Revolution,
USUALLY Virginians moved to Kentucky, North Carolinians to
Tennessee, and South Carolinians to Georgia or Alabama.

Most of our ancestors were either English or Scots-Irish.
SCOTS-IRISH, not Scotch-Irish. Scotch is the name of a whiskey.
Around 1610 King James I of England, also King James VI of
Scotland, confiscated the lands of the rebellious Irish and
bestowed them on many of his more tractable, hard-working fellow
countrymen, the Scots. While they are now called Scots-Irish, it
is only because they lived in Ireland, and not because they had
anything to do with the Irish. There was no friendship or inter-
mrriage. We also have some Irish blood, and are descended from at
least two French families. The Petite and Guyton families were of
French origin, and probably were Hugenots, followers of Calvin
who were forced to flee from Catholic France.

In doing gemealogical research it is necessary to keep in
mind that individuals or single families rarely moved. Gemerally
groups of families, communities, or church conmgregations moved
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together. Often they sent a scout to select a suitable area,
which was generally a duplicate of their previous environment.
The neighbors in the old community often appear as neighbors in
the new. When moving to the wilderness it was necessary to take
everything you might need, even friends and family, as well as
everything that would be needed to build a cabin, clear the land,
and survive until crops could be planted and harvested.

It is sometimes difficult to determine when a family moved
to a location. Often they would be on the land for several years
before registering their claim or filing for a grant.

The exact route by which our direct ancestors migrated to
Alabama is no longer known, but we are relatively certain that
they did not take I-20. In fact, we know that there were no roads
at all, only Indian Trails, with the exception of the Government
or Military Road which entered Alabama at Columbus, GA and
wandered through Montgomery and on to St. Stevens.

The route most of our ancestors took was probably much as
that described in a "Way Bill" written by John T. Sherer whose
family moved from Bullock’s Creek, York Co., SC to Walker County
AL in 1857, as recounted in Carolina Shearer-Shearer’s and
Others, by Ben H. Horton, ED., 1978. Most of our ancestors
arrived between 1832 and 1840, so their route may have varied
from this:

1. Pinckney Ferry on the Broad River/York-Union line.

2. spartanburg 35 miles

3. Greenville 31 miles

4. Pendleton, SC 29 miles

-. Maxwell Bridge on Senmeca River 7 miles
Townville, SC 3 miles
Fairplay, SC 7 miles
Knox’s Bridge Tugaloo River SC/GA line 3 miles
Carnesville, GA 16 miles
Brown’s Bridge 9 miles
Lickskillet 40 miles
Frogtown 8 miles
Canton, GA 17 miles
Cassville’s Water Station, GA 45 miles

Kingston, GA 6 miles

Rome, GA 15 miles

Cedar Bluff, AL 78 miles

Gadsden, AL 28 miles

Brooksville, AL 34 miles
Blountsville, AL 10 miles

sipsey, AL- Sanders Ferry 30 miles
Jasper, AL 9 miles

TOTAL 492 miles.

Given the condition of the roads, or the lack of them,
the fact that the settlers often used ox-drawn wagons, brought
their slaves and livestock along, as well as everthing they might
need until a crop could be made, their progress could mot have
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been much more than a leisurely walk. In the evenings they would
have to stop early enough to tend their cattle, hunt up firewood,
cook their own meals. It is unlikely they made over ten miles a
day, which would indicate the trip might have taken as much as
eight weeks.

Thus begins the story of the Davidson Family and their
ancestors. As our ancestors go, the Davidsons were probably the
last family to arrive in America. The first settlement,
Jamestown, in Virginia, took place in 1607, with more settlers
arriving in 1608. Our ancestors began to arrive around 1620,
settling mainly in that same gemeral area of Virginia, some later
moving to Maryland, where they intermarried with other ancestors
who settled there. The naturalization papers of James A. and
Andrew Davidson, filed in York County, SC in 1816, indicate that
they arrived in America in 1798, coming from Ireland. They would
have been aged eleven and thirteen, which would indicate that
they came with their parents. Margaret Davidson Sizemore Douglas,
an eminent scholar, university administrator, and genealogist,
apparently believed their father was Alexander Davidson. It is
more likely that he was a grandfather, and that their father was
also named James, who transferred land to the boys in 1809, and
probably was dead before they made the move to western Alabama
and Eastern Mississippi about 1840.

Why did they come? While the call of the frontier may have
had something to do with it, the reason was probably the
availability of good, cheap land. The soil in South Carolina
began to be worked out, chemical fertilizers mot being available.
James paid 25 cents per acre for the first 40 acres, then half of
that for as much as he wanted or could afford.

Virtually all of our ancestors were Protestant. Most of the
Americans, including the Davidsons, were slaveowners. Most were
farmers and planters. Many fought in the Colonial Wars, including
the French and Indian War. Several participated in Bacon’s
Rebellion. Many fought in the Revolutionary War. Quite a few were
of the gentry. Some of the English were of the lesser Nobility,
and through the Egertoms, Douglases and Alexanders we probably
share the royal blood of the Stuarts.

There is still much to be learned. The Curtis and Bryan
families lead to dead-ends, as well as other families farther
back. I have here tried to provide as many clues as possible for
those who continue to research this vital and interesting family.

c:\wpdocs\david.pre
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The Davidson Ancestors

The following Pedigree lists the direct ancestors of James
Andrew Davidson and his wife Elfleda Curtis Davidson, who reared
their children in Lamar, Marion, and Jefferson Counties in
Alabama.

Their modern day descendants are primarily of English and
Scots-Irish (NOT Scotch-Irish!) descent with a little Irish and
French for seasoning. The Hawkins, Curtis, Smith, Gonson, Davies
and Whitaker families are English while the Love, Alexander,
McKnight and Wallace families are Scots-Irish. The Bryan’s were
Irish and the Guyton and Petite families were originally French
Hugenots.

The Scots-Irish, or Ulster Scots, were not really Irish at
all, and had very little to do with the Irish. They did not
intermarry with the Irish. King James I of England, a Scotsman
himself, and a relative of the Alexanders, confiscated the lands
of the troublesome and rebellious Irish Catholics and gave their
estates to the loyal and hard-working Scots who then moved into
Ulster where there was more toleration, at least at that time, of
their Calvinist Protestantism. (See the Alexander section for
more on the Scots-Irish).

Through the Alexanders we are descended from the Scotch
Kings, and are related to the Royal Stuarts of England. Through
the Egertons and Hawkins lines we are akin to Royal favorites and
administrators. Sir John Hawkins was not only a great mariner,
third in command in the defeat of the Spanish Armada and
Treasurer of the Royal Navy, he was Queen Elizabeth’s most
trusted advisor on naval matters, her partner in his Privateering
raids on the Spanish and Dutch, and also founded the slave trade
in the Carribbean.
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Most of our ancestors arrived in this country in Maryland or
Virginia. Their families later moved to North and South Carolina,
mostly along the border between the tuqisfates, before moving 5
westward to Alabama and Mississippi in _ﬁr{»:uo. Most were
planters and slave owners. All were protestant.

The Bryans and Hawkins families came first, from Kentucky to
wWashington County, Mississipi Territory (now Sumter County, AL),
in 1820. The Alexanders, Guytons and Smiths settled in Pickens
County beginning about 1825. The Riggan’'s came to Monroe County,
MS, about 1823, the Curtis family to Lowndes Co., MS, and the
Davidson and Love families to Marion Co., AL and Itawamba Co., MS
about 1840.

There being no Interstate Highways at the time, or even any
roads, most came afoot and horseback or in ox-drawn wagons over
the old Indian Path, from the Broad River in York and Union (the
part now in Cherokee) counties in South Carolina, through
Pendleton, through northern Georgia, and through Blountsville and
Jasper in Alabama. The journey probably lasted eight weeks.

They brought with them o the wilderness everything they would
need to suvive until land could be cleared, crops planted and
harvested. There were no stores or super markets.

Rarely did they move alone. Often whole communities;
families or church congregations moved together after first
sending a scout to find land much like that of the homeplace.

Why did they come? Land. Land could be bought for as little
as twenty-five cents an acre for the first forty acres in the
Choctaw Cession, and half of that for additional acres. The land
in North and South Carolina was worn out, having been intensively
farmed for years, with no commercial fertilizers available.
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The Davidson Ancestors

Most of our immigrant ancestors first landed in either
Virginia or Maryland. Some then went into southern Pemnsylvania,
or from Virginia into Maryland, while others remained in Virginia
or Maryland for a time. In the mid-1700's they began to move
southward along the Great Wagon Road, some stopping in North
Carolina. Most continued into the morthern part of South Carolina
before eventually heading west for Alabama.

Generally Westward Migration, which was impeded first by
government restrictions on movement into Indian Lands, and later
by the mountains and the Indians themselves. When Westward
settlement did began, gemerally during or at the end of the
Revolution, USUALLY Virginians moved to Kentucky, North
Carolinians to Tennessee, and South Carolinians to Georgia or
Alabama.

In doing genealogical research it is necessary to keep in
mind that individuals or single families rarely moved. Generally
groups of families, communities, or church congregations moved
together. The neighbors in the old community often appear as
neighbors in the new. When moving to the wilderness it was
necessary to take everything you might need, even friends and
family.

The exact route by which our direct ancestors migrated to
Alabama is no longer known, but we are relatively certain that
they did not take I-20. In fact, we know that there were no roads
at all, only Indian Trails, with the exception of the Government
or Military Road which entered Alabama at Columbus, GA and
wandered through Montgomery and on to St. Stevens.

The route most of our ancestors took was probably much as
that described in a "Way Bill" written by John T. Sherer whose
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family moved from Bullock’s Creek, York Co., SC to Walker County

AL in 1857, as recounted in Carolina Shearer-Shearer's and

Others, by Ben H. Horton, ED., 1978. Most of our cestors

arrived between 1832 and 1840, so their route may have varied

from thi:
1. Pinckney Ferry on the Broad River/York-Union line.

spartanburg 35 miles

Greenville 31 miles

Pendleton, SC 29 miles

Maxwell Bridge on Seneca River 7 miles

Townville, SC 3 miles

Fairplay, SC 7 miles

Knox’s Bridge Tugaloo River SC/GA line 3 miles

Carnesville, GA 16 miles

Brown’s Bridge 9 miles

Lickskillet 40 miles

Frogtown 8 miles

Canton, GA 17 miles

Cassville’s Water Station, GA 45 miles

Kingston, GA 6 miles

Rome, GA 15 miles

Cedar Bluff, AL 78 miles

Gadsden, AL 28 miles

Brooksville, AL 34 miles

Blountsville, AL 10 miles

Sipsey, AL- Sanders Ferry 30 miles

Jasper, AL 9 miles

TOTAL 492 miles.

Given the condition of the roads, or the lack of them,

the fact that the settlers often used ox-drawn wagons, brought
their slaves and livestock along, as well as everthing they might
need until a crop could be made, their progress could not have
been much more than a leisurely walk. In the evenings they would
have to stop early emough to tend their cattle, hunt up firewood,
cook their own meals. It is unlikely they made over ten miles a
day, which would indicate the trip might have taken as much as
eight weeks.

wpdocs\david.pre
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Most of our immigrant ancestors first landed in either
virginia or Maryland. Settlement began at Jamestown Colony in
virginia in 1607 and gradually moved northward up Chesapeke Bay
and its tributaries. In the beginning all settlement was along
the banks of the bays, rivers, and other waterways, there being
no roads of any kind. When the settlement of Maryland began there
was some movement between Virginia and Maryland. Thanks to the
liberal policy of Lord Baltimore regarding freedom of religious
choice, new immigrants were more attracted to Maryland. Between
1650 and 1659 a number of Puritans and their sympathizers were
forced to leave Virginia or submit to an oath of loyalty to the
Established, or Anglican, Church. Those families settled mostly
in the lower counties of Maryland. Later they began to move to
the frontier as the wilderness and the Indians were pushed back,
first into inland Virginia, and much later into North and South
Carolina. Settlement into Tennessee, and Kentucky did not begin
in earnest until during and after the Revolutionary War. In the
mid-1700’s they began to move southward along the Great Wagon
Road from Maryland and Virginia, some stopping in North Carolina,
but most of our ancestors continued into the northern part of
South Carolina. There they stayed until the 1820‘s and 1830's
before heading west for Alabama and Mississippi. All of the
Davidson related families were in west central Alabama and east
central Mississippi by 1840, when the Davidsons themselves
arrived in what was then Marion and is now Lamar County, AL.

Generally Westward Migration was impeded first by government
restrictions on movement into Indian Lands, and later by the
mountains and the Indians themselves. When Westward settlement
did began, generally during or at the end of the Revolution,
USUALLY Virginians moved to Kentucky, North Carolinians to
Tennessee, and South Carolinians to Georgia or Alabama.

Most of our ancestors were either English or Scots-Irish.
SCOTS-IRISH, not Scotch-Irish. Scotch is the name of a whiskey.
Around 1610 King James I of England, who was also King James VI
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of Scotland, confiscated the estates of the rebellious Irish and
bestowed them on many of his more tractable, hard-working fellow
countrymen, the Scots. While they are now called Scots-Irish, it
is only because they lived in Ireland, and not because they had

anything to do with the Irish. There was no friendship or inter-
mrriage. We also have some Irish blood, unrelated to the Scots,

and are descended from at least two French families.

The Petite and Guyton families were of French origin, and
probably were Hugenots, followers of Calvin who were forced to
flee from Catholic France. The Guytons fled first to England, but
we are uncertain by what route the Petites reached America.

In doing genealogical research it is necessary to keep in
mind that individuals or single families rarely moved. Generally
groups of families, communities, or church congregations moved
together. Often they sent a scout to select a suitable area,
which was generally a duplicate of their previous environment.
The neighbors in the old community often appear as neighbors in
the new. When moving to the wilderness it was necessary to take
everything you might need, even friends and family, as well as
everything that would be needed to build a cabin, clear the land,
and survive until crops could be planted and harvested.

It is sometimes difficult to determine when a family moved
to a location. Often they would be on the land for several years
before registering their claim or filing for a grant.

The exact route by which our direct ancestors migrated to
Alabama is no longer known, but we are relatively certain that
they did not take I-20. In fact, we know that there were no roads
at all, only Indian Trails, with the exception of the Government.
or Military Road which entered Alabama at Columbus, GA and
wandered through Montgomery and on to St. Stevens.

The route most of our ancestors took was probably much as
that described in a "Way Bill" written by John T. Sherer whose
family moved from Bullock’s Creek, York Co., SC to Walker County
AL in 1857, as recounted in i = ?

Others, by Ben H. Horton, ED., 1978. Most of our ancestors
arrived between 1832 and 1840, so their route may have varied
from this:

1. Pinckney Ferry on the Broad River/York-Union line.

2. Spartanburg 35 miles

3. Greenville 31 miles

4. Pendleton, SC 29 miles
Maxwell Bridge on Seneca River 7 miles
Townville, SC 3 miles
Fairplay, SC 7 miles
Knox’s Bridge Tugaloo River SC/GA line 3 miles
carnesville, GA 16 miles
Brown’s Bridge 9 miles
Lickskillet 40 miles
Frogtown 8 miles
canton, GA 17 miles
Cassville’s Water Station, GA 45 miles
10. Kingston, GA 6 miles
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There is still much to be learned. The Curtis and Bryan
fanilies lead to dead-ends, as well as other families farther
back. I have here tried to provide as much truth as is known,
identifying the evidence and conjecture that offers many clues to
that which is merely believed, and pointing out what is known
about the unknown so that others will have a headstart.
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11. Rome, GA 15 miles

12. Cedar Bluff, AL 78 miles

13. Gadsden, AL 28 miles

14. Brooksville, AL 34 miles

15. Blountsville, AL 10 miles

16. Sipsey, AL- Sanders Ferry 30 miles
17. Jasper, AL 9 miles

TOTAL 492 miles.

Given the condition of the roads, or the lack of them,
the fact that the settlers often used ox-drawn wagons, brought
their slaves and livestock along, as well as everthing they might
need until a crop could be made, their progress could not have
been much more than a leisurely walk. In the evenings they would
have to stop early enough to tend their cattle, hunt up firewood,
cook their own meals. It is unlikely they made over ten miles a
day, which would indicate the trip might have taken as much as
eight weeks.

Thus begins the story of the Davidson Family and their
ancestors. As our ancestors go, the Davidsons were probably the
last family to arrive in America. The naturalization papers of
James A. and Andrew Davidson, filed in York County, SC in 1816,
indicate that they arrived in America in 1798, coming from
Ireland. They would have been aged eleven and thirteen, which
would indicate that they came with their parents. Margaret
Davidson Sizemore Douglas, an eminent scholar, university
administrator, and genealogist, apparently believed their father
was Alexander Davidson. It is more likely that he was a
grandfather, and that their father was also named James, who
transferred land to the boys in 1809, and probably was dead
before they made the move to western Alabama and Eastern
Mississippi about 1840.

Why did they come to Alabama, then a wild frontier, and
leave South Carolina which was still pretty rough country? While
the call of the frontier may have had something to do with it,
the reason was probably the availability of good, cheap land. The
soil in South Carolina began to be worked out, chemical
fertilizers not being available. James Davison, as the name was
spelled then, paid 25 cents per acre for the first 40 acres, then
half of that for as much more as he wanted or could afford.

Virtually all of our ancestors were Protestant. Most of the
Americans, including the Davidsons, were slaveowners. Most were
farmers and planters. Many fought in the Colonial Wars, including
the French and Indian War. All of our ancestors in Isle of Wight
or Surry Counties in Virginia, and there were several of our
fanily lines in that area, and most participated in Bacon’s
Rebellion, and all were among the rebels. Many fought in the
Revolutionary War. Quite a few were of the gentry. Some of the
English were of the lesser Nobility, and through the Egertons,
Douglases and Alexanders we probably share the royal blood of the
Stuarts.
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Prepared by: Walter Orien Holliman Jr. "Walt"

James® Davidson Sr. <?> <Davison>’. Born, circa 1763 (2?), in Inverness,
L tland Died. before 1830 (2), in York Co., SC. Census: 1810, in York Co.,
3 Resided in Ireland, York Co., SC. Occupation: Farmer.

Third great-grandfather. Ahf. 16.

THIS ANCESTOR 1S PROBABLE BUT NOT PROVED. According £0 2 handwritten
pedigree of the Davidson family prepared by Margaret Davidson Sizemore Douglas,
Do ent. scholar and university administrator at Sanford University, which is
A the posession of Anna Carter Johnson in Monroe, LA., 2 cusi 20 the Riggan
et the family, the father of James A. Davi(d)son, the immigrant ancestor
o cottled in Marion, now Lamr, County, AL., was Alexander Davidson, son of
Ao ho was born in Inverness, Scotland and, with his father, fled to Ireland
20ter the Battle of Culloden in 1745-6. Later, Alexander was said to have
migrated to 5. C. Unfortunately, the only works of Margarets that I have seen
e obviously hastily done for a friend and were not documented, and had no
Source references of any kind. Margaret told me that her research was among her
papers at the Samford University Library, but those particular files are
DR ing. she is probably correct, but Ihave here tried to document everything
B i"or at least warn the reader when I haven’t been able to do so.

1o avidence 1 have found in York County, SC., which is not conclusive,
hints that another James Davison, Sr., rather than Alexander (who may in turn
S ena IS father), as being the father of the James and his brother Andrew
Who came to Alabama and Mississippi about 1840,

Try as 1 might, 1 have found no record of an Alexander Davison, in the
right area at the right time, in SC, AL, or S. James and Andrew, in their
R oation Papers, stated that they came to SC in 1798. Ve know that James
Davison. sr. deeded James and Andrew "the land vhere 1 now Tive" in York Co.,
51809, e have other documents signed by *James Davison, Sr." up until
So2a Mter which there is no distictive record. I have found only two
A ier Davi(d)sons in SC. One lived in Spartanburg Co., and the other in
Neeharry. Both were age 26-45 in 1810, and too young to be an ancestor.

T e cane to the U. S. when only age ten or eleven, which would indicate
that hie parents brought him, Davidson does not mention Andrew ac & brother,
e does hame a brother Ben who she says 1ived at Tremont, Ittawanba Co., MS. T
Pave proved the relationship of James and Andrew. The SC Consys records
D i there was a younger brother, prabably Ben, but I have found no legal
o tensus records of him in Alabama or Mississippi.

Margaret Sizemore Douglas is probably correct, but we believe that an
it o hes must be inserted between Jares A. Davison and Alexander, the
son of John.

b ition to this Janes, who we believe was the father of the elder
James A the. imigrant, there vas both an earlier James Davison "of Burke Co,
325 Aho so1d Tand on Guyon Moore’s Creek in York Co., SC in 1788 to Judge
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Abraham Smith, another ancestor (This James Davison was probably not related
since James A. was born in Ireland in 1788). Another Davison in the area,
according to York Co., SC Deed Book B-392 was John Davison who deeded land to
his 4 minor sons Robert, John, James and Hugh, and also mentions that he has
previously transferred 500 acres of an original grant of 791 acres, patented in
1753, to a son Elias. This land was located on Rocky Fork of Fishing Creek.
Since James A. was not born until 1783 and did not reach SC until 1798, and
Fishing Creek is some distance away, this family is probably not related. One
nust remember that the early census records, up until 1850, listed only the
name of the head of household, then broke the residents into sex and age
groups, which varied in each census. There were a few Davidsons in York and
Union Counties in 1790, 1800, 1810, 1820 and 1830 census records, but the
author has investigated all of them and is satisfied that none except this
James can be the father of James A. and his brother Andrew, either because the
children of the other families have been identified, they did not have children
of the proper age, or they lived in the wrong place.

James and his sons consistently spelled their name DAVISON. Our relations
Tived on the Broad River and on Howard’s Branch of Guyon Moore’s Creek, in York
County, SC, just south of Smith’s Ford, and some of their land adjoined that of
Henry Smith, Sr., whose descendants intermarried with the Alexanders and
Bryans, who, in turn, intermarried with the Curtis and Davidson families.

The 1790 census of York Co., SC names John Davison, 2 males over 16,, 5
males under 16, 4 females. Nearby is an Elias with 1 male over 16, 4 males
under 16, 1 female. Some distance away, there is a William Davidson, 2 males
over 16, 5 males under 16, 2 females. We found no 1790 census record in York or
Union of a James, nor did we expect to.

We also found no 1800 census record in York or Union Counties for James.
This is disappointing but not unusual, since families were often missed.

York County deeds show several land transactions. Some deeds may belong
to either James Sr. or James A., but it appears that the parent signed as James
"Sr" after his son became of age. Try as I might, I have been unable to find
records where James originally acquived his land. The very first deed in York
County to a James Davison was the one in which James Sr. transferred his land
to his sons. He probably acquired the land by patent from the state, but I have
found no record.

19 Sept. 1809 James Davison sold to Andrew and James Davidson 100 ac. on
Howard’s Branch (of Guyon Moore’s Creek) 100 acres, the "place I now liveth",
for $500. Recorded 2 Dec. 1809 (York Co., SC Deed Book G, p. 388). While this
was the sale of his homeplace, there was no release of dower rights, then
strictly enforced, so James may have been a widower by this time, deeding his
homestead to his two sons.

In the 1810 Census of York Coynty SC, p. 270, James Davidson lists 1
female 26-45, posssibly a wife; a famale 16-26, possibly an unidentified s€¢
daughter; a male age 16-26, probably James A.; and a male 0-10, probably the
Ben who Margaret Sizemore Douglas names as a brother of James A. The son
Andrew, now married, is listed seperately with his wife and lives nearby.

In 1819 James Davison sold 200 ac. King’s Creek to Horatio S. Fulton for
$300. Bds: Masoas Branch, Monroe’s old corner, James Davison. Rec. 28 June 1819
(York Co., SC, DB H 536). The phrase "bounded by... James Davison® may indicate
that the land being sold adjoined other lands of James, either Jr. or Sr. The
01d deeds often reag "bounded by his own land" if the same individual’s lands 5/
were involved, but not always.
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We find no 1820 census listing for the elder James, although we know he
signed deeds as late as 1826. Andrew and the younger James are listed.

In 1826 James Davison bought from Andrew Davison and wife Mary 210 ac.
Guyon Moore’s Creek. JAMES DAVISON, SR. was a witness, indicating that this
sale was between the brothers (Ibid,., DB L-94).

The author guesses that James, Sr. died between 1826, when he witnessed a
deed, and 1830 when he was not listed in the census, again not necessarily
conclusive. After his son became of age he signed himself "Sr.”, but there are
no land transactions by James Sr. in SC after 1826, and no census record.

There were land grants to a James Sr. and James Jr. in Monroe County MS
in 1840, but we believe that James, Sr., to be James A., whose son James is now
age 22. No will or estate records found in SC, MS or AL.

He married Unknown Female. Died, before 1809 (?), in York Co., SC.

In the sale of "the places where I now live" in 1809 to James and Andrew,
there was no mention of dower rights, indicating that James was a widower by
that time. Children:

Andrew J.% Davidson <Davison>.

James A. Davidson <Davison>,

Benjamin Davidson <Davison>®. Born, circa 1790, in Ireland.
Died in Tremont, Itawamba Co., MS.

According to Margaret Sizemore Douglas, James had a
brother Ben who moved to near Tremont Mississippi about the
same_time his brother James moved to Detroit, AL. I have been
unable to find any record of a Ben in SC or Miss. However, the
1810 census of York County, SC, household of James Davison,
Tists a son age 0-10, who is probably Ben. In 1820 and 1830
there is an unidentified male in the household of James A.
Davison, age 16-26 in 1820, and age 30-40 in 1830, who could be
his younger brother Ben.
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2. Andrew J. Davidson <Davison> (James Sr. <?> <Davison>, 1). Born, circa
1785, in Ireland. Died, before 1860 (?), in Smithville, Monroe Co., MS. Census:
1810, in York Co., SC. Census: 1830, in York Co., SC. Census: 1850, in Itawamba
Co., MS.

Margaret Sizemore Douglas has reported in her research that James A.
Davidson had a brother Ben who settled mear Tremont, S, but no record of a Ben
has been found there or in S. C. It is clear that he did have a brother named
Andrew J., who was naturalized at the same time, and moved to Mississippi at
the same time. The deed records in York Co., SC hint that James and Andrew were
the sons of James, Sr. Andrew patenfed land in Itawamba County, MS in Dec.
1840, and had moved from SC by that time.

There is no 1800 census record for this family in York Co., SC.

19 Sept. 1809, James Davison, probably the father, sold 100 Acres on
Howards Creek, "where said James now liveth" in York Co., SC to Andrew and
James Davison for $500. (At this time Andrew would have been 24 and James, Jr.
age 21.) Recorded 19 Sept. 1809 (DB G p. 238 York Co., SC).

The 1810 Census of York Co., SC, page 269 shows Andrew Davison and wife
both age 16-26.

His naturalization records, along with those of his brother James, are
found in York County records which show they both came to the US in 1798
between June 18 and Dec. 31, and were naturalized in the York County SC Court
of Common Pleas 28 Oct. 1813 (York District Court of General Sessions p. 267
Ro11 #1668, SC Dept. of Archives, Columbia, SC*).

16 May 1814 John & Jean Barr sold to Andrew Davison 243 acres on a branch
of Moore’s Creek for $125. bd N by John Boland's land, E by Stephenson, S by
Marley and W by Leeches. £S) John Barr, Jean Barr(X). Proved by James Davison 6 //
Feb 1817, rec. 24 Mar 1817 Wit: Janes Davidson, Jases Rogers (DB H p. 263 York
0., SC)

On 1 Sept 1819 Andrew sold to Jacob Stroup 100 ac. on Wolf Creek, a
branch of King’s Creek, waters of the Broad River, for $220. Originally granted
Thaddeus Reid. Andrew Davison fSY. Wit: J. Strain, James Neelander. Proved by  ,/
James Strain 10 Dec. 1822 (DB T p. 537 York Co.SC¥).

The 1820 Census York Co., SC., p. 164, Capt. John Thompson’s District.
Sndren Davidson 1 mile 10-16 1 ale 26-40,"4 Females under 10, 1 female 26-40,
2 slaves.

0n 19 Mar 1822 Andrew Davison bought for $360. from the Commissioner in
Equity a tract of land belonging to John Feemster, dec’d, at auction, a tract
of land on Marley’s branch of Moore’s Creek bd by James Scott, James Powell,
originally granted to Edward Moorehead 3 Jun 1793. (DB I p. 399 York Co., SC*).

11 Sept. 1824 Andrew Davison to Thomas Bowlan (also Bowlan, Bowling) 31
ac. Moores Creek for $45. Part of survey granted John Smith 4 July 1803 bd:
Steven’s line, Bowlan’s Corner, estate of Mary Stevens, Thomas Bowlin, Andrew
Davison, estate of Mary Stevens. Proved by David Howe. Rec. Nov. 2, 1827. (DB
L-105 York Co.*).
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28 Oct. 1825 Andrew Davison sold to Jacob Stroup 150 ac. on the Broad
River, for $150. bd. by Alex Ramsey on SW, James Davison on South, Jacob Stroup
on E and NE, land conveyed to E. Fennell by Powell on N., and land conveyed to
J. Stroup by V. Powell on West, by Alex Ramsey on S. side of Smith’s Ford Road,
near Elmender Tavern - W. side of Quinn’s Road. Andrew Davison (S) Wit: J.
Strain, Robert Neelander. Rec. 4 Nov. 1825 (DB K-350, York Co.*).

10 Nov. 1826 Andrew Davison bought 532 acres on Clarks fork of Bullock’s
Creek from Francis Gilmore and wife Jemima for $800. bd. by Thomas Bowling near
Haw Branch, W. A. Caphin (?), Stephenson, Ray, Nichols, Joshua Gilmore. Proved
by James Davison. Recorded 18 Apr. 1827 (DB L p. 58*). Same parties, $800.,
Clarks Fork of Bullocks Cr. 125 acres...James Gilmores line. Francis
Gilmore, (S) Jemina Gilmore (Mark). Wit: Joseph Logan, James Davison. (DB L. p.
58, York Co., SC*). "

10 Nov. 1826 Andrew Davison and Mary Davison, his wife, York District,
for $200.00 to James Davison (James A.) of same, tract on waters of Guion
Moores Creek 210 acres beginning at a sweetgum tree. Bds crossing Quins road,
Whitesides... Still House branch...Ramsey’s corner...Quinns road.. bounded by
Alexander Henry, Thomas Whit>side , Alexander Ramsey and Carmels lands granted
to Edward Moorehead by patent June 1793. Andrew Davison. Mary Davison her mark
(+). Wit. Joseph Logan, JAMES DAVISON SEN. (DB L p. 94-95 York Co., SC¥).

On the 25th of May, 1827 Andrew Davison of York District purchased from
Alexander Henry for $200 a tract of land lying on the waters of Guion Moore’s
Creek containing 200 acres excluding lands claimed on older grants by Littleton
sandlin and Thomas Whitesides, Sr. Alexander Henry. Wit: J. Belloie, James
Davison. (DB L p. 114 York Co., SC¥).

The 1830 census of York Co., SC, p. 365 lists Andrew Davison with 1 male
5-10; 1 male 16-20; 1 male 40-50; 2 females 10-15; 2 females 15-20; 1 female
20-30, 1 female 40-50. Their son James would have been one of the males 15-20,
and daughter Martha one of the young females. Other children unknown.

14 Jan. 1837 Andrew Davison sold 52 1/2 ac. $100. West side Clarks Fork
of Bullocks Cr. waters of Broad River to Robert Whitesides. Andrew Davison {SY. //
Wit. Dawson Jenkins, Jonathan N. McElwee. proved by Lawson Jenkins 31 May 1837.
(DB M-243 York Co.SC*).

17 Sept. 1839 Andrew Davison and wife Mary (X) sold 460 ac. on Clarks
fork of Bullock’s Creek to John Cats for $1,000., bd. by Whiteside, Stevenson,
Whiteside. Andrew Davison {SY. Wit: Wm. McGill, J. N. McElwee. Proved by '/
Jonathan N. McElwee, recorded 7 Feb 1840. Dower Mary Davison (X) (DB N p. 67
York Co.SC*).

25 Nov. 1839 Andrew and Mary Davison sold 136 acres on Guion Moore’s
creek to James Davison (this could be James A. or Andrew’s son James, now age
27) for $200., bd. by Sandling, Andrew Davison, Major Whiteside, Josiah Howard,
Abraham Smith. Andrew Davison AS) Mary Davison (X). Wit. Willian Sumerford, //
Syntha Davison. Proved by Wm. Summerford. Rec. 6 Apr. 1840. (DB M p. 380 York
Co., SC.%).

25 Nov. 1839 Andrew Davison and Asburn Martin sold 111 ac. Clarks Fork of
Bullocks Cr. to John Cats for $300., beg. B Oak Smole on Thomas Bolins
Tine...branch. .Whiteside’s corner..Thomas Bolins line, with line to beg. at
Whiteside’s corner. Bounded by John Cats, Thomas Bowlin, Robert Whitesides. 15{1 /)
Andrew Davison, Asburn Martin. Wit: James Davison, William Summerford. Rec. 2
Sept 1840. Proved by James Davison (DB N p. 67 York Co., SC¥).

12 September 1840 Andrew Davison and James Davison (SON OF ANDREW
DAVISON) sold to James Crawford lands lying on each side of Quin’s road, waters
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of the Broad River, bounded on the north by Josiah Henry and on the east by
Childers and Sandlins land and on the south by McClunney. Andrew Davison, James
Davison for $800. Wit: J. N. McElwer, J. B. Crawford. Mary Davison, wife of

Andrew Davison signed dower rights (by her mark, a backslash.) (DB'N, p. 184

York Co., SC*). This is probably when they left for Mississippi.

ATl of these land transactions are along Guion Moores Creek and the Broad
River, which would be just south of Smith’s Ford, domain of the Smith
ancestors, and just across the river from the Guyton ancestors. The Loves lived
in the same area, but probably to the south of the Davidsons.

No later than December 1840, Andrew and his family had moved, first to
Itawamba County Mississippi, Andrew moving later to Smithville, Monroe Co., and
James Tater moving to Marion (Lamar) Co.,AL, just across the state line. 4

No census record has been found fof® 1840 in SC or MS.

The following Tand transactions of Andrew Davidson (Davison) are recorded
in Itawamba Co., MS:

1 April 1841 From Andrew I. Meadow, adnr. of James Nelson, dec’d, to
Andrew Davidson 160 ac. for $125 S 1/4 Sec. 3 T11 RIOE. Rebecca Nelson (X)
releases dower. Proved by William J. Meadow 1 April 1841 (DB 3 p. 21%).

11 Mar. 1842 From Barnabas Bowlin to Andrew Davidson both of Itawamba Co,
MS 160 ac. for S100 SW 1/4 Sec. 21 T11 RIOE. Proved by Barnabas Bowlin 11 Mar.
1842. Mary Ann (X) Bowlin released dower. (DB 3 p. 294-5%).

10 Mar 1842 Andrew Davidson to William Thompson 160 ac. for $80 SW 1/4
Sec. 14 TI1 RIOE Ack. 18 Sept 1843. Rec. 14 Dec. 1846 (DB 3 p. 297%). (The
record of purchase not found. No reverse index available in Itawamba Co.).

30 Oct. 1845 From Edward Maxey and Mary Maxey, his wife, to Andrew
Davidson, all of Itawamba Co., MS 160 ac. $50. NE 1/4 Sec. 21 TI1 RIOE (DB 5 p.
446-7%).

29 Nov. 1845 From Joseph H. Been to Andrew Davidson both of Itawamba Co.,
MS 160 ac. $46. SE 1/4 Sec 10 TI1 RIOE (DB 6 p. 4-5%).

9 Dec. 1845 Andrew Davidson to Thomas McNiece 150 ac. $55 Dower: Mary
(X). SE 1/4 Sec. 5 TI1 RIOE. (DB 6, p. 408-9%). (No record of purchase)

26 June 1847 Andrew Davidson to Wm. Barner 320 ac. $500 Dower: Mary (X)
Davidson. SW 1/4 and SE 1/4 Sec 21 T11 RIOE. Andrew Davison (S)(DB 6 p. 278*).

3 May 1849 Andrew Davidson To E. N. Davidson 160 ac. $200. Andrew Davison
{S). Dower: Mary (X) Davidson, E 1/2 $H 1/4 Sec 3, and E 1/2 NW 1/2 Sec. 10, /¢
TI1 RIOE. (DB 6, p. 251-2%).

2 0ct. 1839" Andrew Davison tp Hary M. Spann both of Itawanba Co. WS 160,
ac. for §5 NE 1/2 Sec. 18 T9 R8E /;fA, Davison (no record of purchase) (08 7 7/
p. 277-8).

The 1850 census of Itawamba Co., MS lists on page 387 household 133
Andrew Davidson, age 65, male, a farmer, Real Estate valued at $1,000, born in
Ireland. Wife Mary, age 50, born in SC, son James 38, Farmer, Andrew, 20,
farmer, and Martha, 18, A1l children born in SC. (According to the 1830 census
there were probably 4 more children who were not at home on the 1850 census).

13 Nov. 1852 U. S. Land Grant # 24209 to Andrew Davidson 40 acres in
Lamar Co., AL NE 1/4 SE 1/4 Sec. 10, TI3S R16W (Plat Book 1, Lamar Co., AL.).

16 Oct. 1855 Andrew Davidson OF THE COUNTY OF MONROE to Royal Clay 320
ac. for $600. SE 1/4 Sec. 4, and W 1/2 SE 1/4 Sec. 23 and W 1/2 NW 1/4 Sec. 10
T |;w£. Andrew Davidson £$) Mary Davidson (X)(Itawamba Co. MS. DB 13 p. 7
208*).

6 Dec. 1860 Andrew J. Davison and Mary W. (X) Davison 305 ac. Itawamba
Co., MS. to E. N. Davidson for $800 an undivided 1/2 interest in SW 1/4 Sec. 29
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and NW 1/4 Sec. 32 T10 R10E portion north of James Creek except 20 ac. not
deeded by W. R. Thompson to A. J. and E. N. Davison on NH portion, and except 5
acres where Harer’s Tan Yards is located. (Itawamba Co., MS., DB 16 p. 329%).

The following land transactions of Andrew J. Davidson are recorded in
Chancery Records of Monroe County, MS. at Aberdeen, MS:

3 Feb. 1852/3 Feb. 1852 Andrew Davison from Colman H. Ballard and wife
Mary all of Monroe Co., MS., 280 ac. for $2,300.00. ATl in Chickasaw Cession SE
1/4 AND S 1/2 NW 1/4 AND SW 1/4 East of Branch where the Gin is (40 to 50 ac.),
all in Sec. 33 T11 R9E (DB 15 p. 534%).

23 May 1857/24 Oct. 1859 Andrew Davison To Martin Spring, both of Monroe
Co., MS. Dower rights of Mary Davison. for $100. Lot in town of Miilville Lot
33'N. side of Main Street (DB 21 p. 49%).

8 June 1858/2 Dec. 1858 From N. M. Dobbs, Sheriff, to Andrew Davison 53
1/3 ac for $415. S 1/3 S 1/4 Sec. 5 T12 R9E and lots 4 and 5 town of
Smithville. (DB 20 p. 118%).

13 June 1858/13 Nov. 1858 From John L. Dabbs and wife Elizabeth to Andrew
Davison all of Monroe Co., MS 2 lots for $700. Lots 17 and 18 in Smithville
2nd. survey (lots 43 and 44 of Ist survey) (DB 20 p. 63-4%).

27 Nov. 1858/30 Nov. 1858 Sold to Thomas L. Trapp 1/2 ac. for $400 as
conveyed from J. N. Elliott by the Smithville lots. (DB 20 p. 105-6¥).

1 Dec. 1858/22 Apr. 1859. Andrew Davison of Monroe Co., MS bought from
Robert Conley and wife A. R. of Chickasaw Co., MS. for $330. W 1/3 of lot 3
Town of Smithville, being the store house of 1. R. Dawson with warehouse and
shoe shop in town of Smithville. (DB 20 p. 366-7%).

2 Aug. 1859 Andrew Davison bought from J. M. Meadows and T. M. Stevens
all of Monroe Co., MS 2 lots for $125. Lots 4 and 5 in town of Smithville known
as the Livery Stable now occupied by T. L. Trapp. (DB 20 p. 560%).

13 May 1852 land grant #24209 to Andrew Davison covering SE 1/4 of NE 1/4
and the NE 1/4 of SE 1/4 of Sec. 10 TI3S RI6W in what is now Lamar Co, AL., as
shown in the Lamar Co. Plat Book (Micr., Ala. Dept. of Archives and History,
Hontgomery).

No probate records or will has been found in Monroe County, MS., but an
1855 deed in Itawamba states he is "now of Monroe County.” There are land
transactions as late as 1859, which is when he probably died.

In the 1860 Census of Monroe Co., MS p. 317 the widow Mary is listed as
Tiving alone, age 70, born in S.C. with Real Estate valued at $3,000. and
property valued at $3,150.

He married Mary W. Unknown surname, circa 1810 (?), in York Co., SC.
Born, 1790 (2), in York Co., SC. Died in Monroe Co., MS. Census: 1860, in
Monroe Co., MS. '

Mary signed away her dower rights on deeds by Andrew and her son James in
1826, 1839, 1855 and 1857.

She is probably the widowed Mary Davidson shown on p. 317 of the Monroe
County Mississippi census of 1860, age 70, living alone, born in SC, land value
$3,000. other assets $3,150. Children:

i. James® Davidson. Born, 1812, in York Co., SC. Died in Itawamba
Co., MS. Census: 1850, in Itawamba Co., MS. Census: 1860, in
Itawamba Co., MS.

He is probably the male age 15-20 in the 1830 census of
York Co., SC. In the 1850 census of Itawamba Co., MS he was
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Tiving with his parents, and was probably single. Another
possibility is that he was the widowed father of Andrew and
Martha, who, if siblings, were quite a bit younger than he.
Lacking other evidence, the author has shown them as children
of Andrew and Mary. In the 1860 census of Itawamba Co., MS p.
477, James Davidson has two male slaves age 21 and 14.

The 1860 census of Itawamba Co., MS, p. 332, list James
Davidson, farmer, living alone, age 50, born in SC, land value
$1,000, other property $4,000.

Unknown Female Davidson®. Born, before 1820, in York Co., SC.
Unknown female Davidson®. Born, before 1820, in York Co., SC.
Unknown Female Davidson. Born, before 1825, in York Co., SC.
Unknown Female Davidson®. Born, before 1825, in York Co. SC.
Andrew J. Davidson. Born, 1830, in York Co., SC. Census: 1850,
in Itawamba Co., MS. Census: 1860, in Monroe Co., MS.

vii. Martha W. Davidson. Born, 1832, in York Co., SC. Census: 1850,

in Itawamba Co., MS.

3. James A.* Davidson <Davison> (James Sr. <?> <Davison>, 1)°. Born, 1788
(2), in Ireland. Died, 17 Jun 1856, in Detroit, Marion Co., AL. Census: 1810,
in'York Co., SC. Census: 1830, in York Co., SC. Census: 1850, in Marion
(Lamar), Co., AL. Occupation: PlanterMerchant.

Great-great-grandfather. Ahf. 8.

According to his naturalization papers James A. Davison came to York
County, SC from Ireland between 18 June 1798 and Dec. 31, 1798 as attested by
Andrew Davison, his brother, who was naturalized at the same time, in his
petition for citizenship dated 19 Oct. 1813 (York County Court of General
Sessions, SC Archives, Roll # C-1688, p. 258-260%). A William, Andrew and
Robert Love were naturalized at the same time and may be related to his future
bride, Sarah Love. (Ibid, p. 260%).

13 Sept. 1809 James Davison (the Senior) sold to James and Andrew Davison
(his sons) 100 acres on Howards Creek in York Co., SC. "where the said James
Davison now liveth," for $500. beg. at a white oak. (York Co., SC DB G p.
386*). This would be Howard’s Branch of Guyon Moore’s Creek. There was no
release of dower on the sale of this homeplace, which might indicate that his
mother was dead by this time, however, the 1810 census shows a female over 45,
who could be the mother or a second wife.

The 1810 census of York Co., SC p. 270 list James Davison and wife, age
over 45, probably the father of James A. and Andrew, with a female age 26-45
(not yet identified), a male 16-26, (probably our James A.), and a male 0-10,
who may be the younger brother Ben who Sizemore Douglas mentions.

28 June 1819 James Davison sold to Horatio S. Fulton for $300. land on
the waters of King’s Creek, 200 ac. beg. at a beech on Mason’s Cr. James
Davison. 2 witnesses not legible and Daniel Dillinger (DB H p. 536-7 York Co.,
SC%).

The 1820 Census of York Co., SC, p. 165, shows a James Davidson who
operates a small Grist Mill and Distillery. There is a male under 10 (William
W.), a male 10-16 (probably James’ brother Ben); 4 male 18-265 a male 26-45; 1
female 16-26, who would be his wife Sarah. There are 2 slaves.

3 Dec. 1825 James Davison made a note for $19.73 payable to Thomas Means
Secured by mtg. on small black male age 6 years old and a feather bed. Rec. 31
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Jan. 1826 (DB S p. 272, York Co., SC*).

0n 10 Nov 1826 James Davison bought 210 ac. Guion Moore’s Cr. from Andrew
Davison and wife Mary (DB L p. 94 York Co., SC¥)

The 1830 Census of York Co., SC, p. 365, has James Davison with 1 male
5-10 (James L.); 1 male 10-15 (William W.); 2 males 30-40 (Probably James A
and brother Ben); 2 females 0-5 (Eleanor and Jane); 1 female 5-10 (Mary
Caroline): 1 female 30-40 (wife Sarah). No slaves are shown. Andrew Davison
Tives nearby.

In 1839 James Davison bought 136 acres on Guion Moores Creek from Andrew
Davison (DB M p. 380, York Co., SC*)

The 1840 census of York Co., SC, page 310, lists James Davison, a male
50-60, a male 20-30, a female 20-30, and a boy and girl under age 5. This does
not seem to be our James, who, with Andrew probably missed being counted in
either SC, AL or MS because the effective date of the 1840 census was June 1.
If they had not been counted before they left SC, they would not have been
counted in MS or AL since they apparently arrived there between September and
early December, after the census had been taken

James and his brother Andrew probably moved from Carolina in late 1840
possibly first to Monroe and Itawamba County, MS, settling on land of the 1812
Chickasaw Cession. James A. later moved to a place across the Alabama line
which he named Millville, which became Detriot, AL. His brother Ben, said to be
a brother by Margaret Sizemore Douglas, is said to have settled in nearby
Tremont, Itawamba Co., His brother Andrew also settled in Ittawamba County S
but the author has found no record of a Ben Davidson in Alabama or Mississippi.

James, or "Jim," and his son William were early merchants and postmasters
at Millville and Detroit. (Rose Marie Smith, Lamar County: A History to 1900,
Vernon, AL., p. 104).

The Family Bible is said to be in posession of Richard Wax, son of John
Cayce Wax, P. 0. Box 60, Amory, MS 38821. (Area 601-256-3511), whose posessions
have gone to son Richard Wax of Amory, but he does not have such a Bible. He
does have a daugerotype photo of James, taken when he was an old man, and
copies of the two wills written by James A. Davison (these not being available
at the courthouse since all records were burned in the civil war), copies of
which he has generously provided the author.

James Davidson, Sr. (James now has a son James who is over 21), of Marion
Co., AL received Federal Land Grant 16592 on 26 Dec. 1840/9 Dec 1844 for 159.64
ac.in Monroe Co., MS .25 per acre NE 1/4 Sec. 33 T11S RIOE (Bureau of Land
Management Patent 16502, Pontotoc, MS., v. 24 p. 103%).

James Davidson, Jr. (son of James A.) of Marion Co., AL received a
Federal Land Grant #16403 of 159.64 acres of land Monroe Co., MS at $0.25 per
acre 2 Dec. 1840/9 Dec. 1844 NW 1/4 Sec. 33 T11S RIOE Monroe Co., MS. as rec
in Vo1.33 p. 418 (Land Original Entries - U. S. Govt. Surveys- Monroe Co., MS
Chancery Clerks Office, p. 68-9: BLM Land Patent 16403 Pontotoc MS. v. 24 p.
104*). Note: this James L. died in 1842 and this land was sold by the heirs of
James A. Davidson, his father, in 1858).

2 June 184174 Jan 1845 James Sr. of Marion Co., AL took an adjoining land
grant at_the reduced price of $.125 per acre, 160.53 acres Monroe Co., MS., SE
l/O)Sec 33 T1IS RIOE (BLM Land Patent 17691, Pontotoc Land Office v. 36 p
32%).

The following land transactions by James Davidson appear in Itawamba
County MS Deed Books as noted: (There is no reverse index to deeds in this
county, so purchases are tough to track. It is possible that a few of these
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deeds belong to James, son of Andrew, although he lived with his parents).

19 Apr. 1841 From Henry Cook of Pontotoc Co. MS by B. A. Cook atty. 160
ac. $100 to James Davidson of Itawamba Co. MS Survey of Chickasaw Nation NE 1/4
Sec. 9 TI1 RIOE. Wit: William Coat, John Stephenson. Rec. 5 Sept. 1841 (DB 3 p.
32-3 Ttawamba Co., MS¥).

7 Dec. 1841 James Davison of Itawamba Co., MS sold to Stephen Weatherford
160 ac. for $23.75 SE 1/4 Sec. 3 T 11 RIOE in land of Chickasaw Cession. James
Davison (S) Proved by him 7 Dec. 1841 (DB 3 p. 76-7 Itawamba Co., MS*).

9 Feb. 1846 James Davison sold to Thomas E. Robinson, both of Itawamba
Co., MS, 60 ac. $10. E1/2 of SH 1/4 Sec. 9 T11 RIOE of the Chickasaw Cession
excepting always a certain quantity “where the Methodist Episcopal Church now
stands”. James Davison (S) Wit: Aston Martin, Robert Riley (X). Proved by James
Davison 25 Aug. 1848 (DB 3 p. 459-60 Itawamba Co., MS*).

20 Aug. 1850 William Addington to James Davidson, both of Itawamba Co.,
Ms, 160 ac. for $115 NE 1/4 Sec. 18 T11 RIOE. William Addington (S) Dower
rights of Mary Ann Addington who stated consideration of $1,015 rather than
S115 cited above. Proved Sept. 9, 1850 by Wm. Addington Recorded 23 June 1853
(Ibid., DB 9 p. 474-5%).

In the 1850 census of District 14, Marion Co., AL, p. 142, dwelling 219.
family 226 taken 25 Nov. 1850 James Davison, age 63, male, a farmer with
$3100.00 in Rea) Estate, born in Ireland; Sarah is 33, born in SC; Jane is 22,
F, born in SC; Thomas is 20, M, a farmer born in SC; John, is 18, M, b. in SCi
Nathaniel, age 16, M, b. in SC. Sarah, 14, F, b. in SC; His eldest son William
is shown next door, shown as a merchant, age 30, b. SC, married to Elizabeth,
age 17, born in MS. There are two adult males 1iving with the family, Robert
Bishop, a Hustler, and Wm. Chatham, a stage driver, probably boarders.

The 1850 Slave Census of Marion County, AL, Dist. 14, page 897, lists
Jas. Davison with 9 slaves, including 6 males ages 55, 25, 24, 22, 23, and
2/12; there are 3 females age 60, 26, and 23.

The 1850 agricultural census of Marion Co., AL., p 41 shows James
Davison, with 120 acres improved land valued at $3,100.00 and 1,328 ac.
unimproved land valued at $400. He has 5 horses, 5 asses and mules, 6 milch
cows, 2 oxen, 70 cattle, 6 sheep, 40 swine, and raised 15 bu. wheat, 1,000 bu.
corn, 10 bu. oats, 16 bales cotton, 100 bu. sweet potatoes, 200 lbs. butter,
200 Ibs beeswax and honey, and manufactured $300. worth of merchandise.

10 Oct. 1853 James Davison of Marion Co., AL to Okly Henderson of
Itawamba Co., S $440. NW 1/4 Sec. 16 T11 RIOE 160 ac. also a part of NE 1/4
Sec. same range and tshp joining the other quarter and running parallel with
the Tine of the other to Adiz Branch, etc. by est. 94 acres. James Davison (S).
Proved by him 10 Oct. 1853. Recorded Dec. 29, 1863. (DB 17 p. 201 Itawamba Co.,
MS*)

6 Jan 1852 James received a land grant # 29989 for 80 acres W 1/2 of SE
1/4 Sec, 23 T 125 RIGH. 24 Feb. 1852 Grant # 16450 and 16451 each for 40 ac. SE
174 and SW 1/4 Sec. 14 T12S RI6(157)W. 25 Nov. 1852 Grant # 40,833 for 78 ac. N
1/2 NW 1/4 and 40 ac. SE 1/4 NW 1/4 Sec. 11 T135 RI6H. 5 Feb 1853 Grant # 27167
for 39 ac. SW 1/4 NE 1/4 Sec. 26 T12S RIGW. 11 Jan. 1854 360 acres School Land
bought from State NE 1/4 and SE 1/4 and St i/4 W 1/4 Sec. 16, T12S RISH.16
October 1854 Grant # 19657 for 160 ac. SW 1/4 Sec. 10 TI2S RISW. 14 Oct. 1854
Srant 19679 for 160 ac S 1/4 Sec. 13 T12S R16W. Same date Grant 19,678 for 120
ac. NW 1/4 NE 1/4 and N 1/2 NW 1/4 Sec. 14 T12S RIGH. Same date Grant # 19680
for 40 ac. SE 1/4 SE 1/4 Sec. 14 TI2S RI6W. 29 Oct. 1856 Grant # 27604 for 240
acres SE 1/4 NW 1/4 and SN 1/4 NW 1/4 and SW 1/4 Sec. 20, T13S R14W. (Lamar Co.
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Plat Book 1, Lamar Co. Probate Office, Vernon, Al.).

The first will of James A. Davison was written 30 Apr. 1856, and was
recorded by John D. Terrell, Probate Judge of Marion County 25 July 1856. The
first page is missing in the copy in posession of the author, but information
provided by Richard Wax indicate it mentions My Millville and sixteenth
section land, and eighty acres on which Mr. Plunkett now resides, and seven
quarter sections on the waters of the Splunge in the county of Itawamba and
State of Mississippi." He then distributed his thirteen slaves in the same
manner as his personal and real property (Richard Wax, phone, 1994).

...Item Sth, my crippled daughter Margaret Jane, Mary Caroline Riggan,
Eleanor A. Wax, Sarah I. McFadden, Wn. W. Davison, Thomas J. Davison, John D.
Davison, and Nathaniel R. Davison, the two latter I desire to have a portion of
my house hold furniture equal to what the others have received. Item 6th. I now
ordain and appoint my son Wn. W. Davison and my son in law Geo. E. Wax to
execute my will in every particular. Signed sealed and delivered on this 30th
day of April in the year of our Tord one thousand eight hundred and fifty six.
James A. Davison. Teste: M. L. Davis, Jefferson C. Lee, Hardy Allen. Rec. 25
July 1886, Marion Co., AL.

On the 16th day of June he rewrote his will, providing: Item 2nd. I give
and bequeath to my beloved daughter Margaret Jane in consideration of her being
a cripple the sum of one thousand Dollars out of the first money that may come
to the hands of my Executors. After my decease this is not in any manner to
affect her right to an equal share in the balance of my estate with my other
heirs, said sum of one thousand dollars to be retained in the hands of my
executors for her use and should the same not be necessary for her use during
her Tifetime and if she should die without Bodily Heirs may be given to any or
all of her brothers and sisters as she may see proper. Item 3rd I give and
bequeath unto my beloved daughter Margaret Jane a Bay Horse known as the horse
I got of Wigginton. Item 4th. I give and bequeath unto my beloved children
William Wilson, Thomas Jefferson, John Donahoe, Nathaniel Rice, Margaret Jane,
Eleanor Araminta, Mary Caroline & Sarah Isabella the remainder of my estate
both real and personal to be divided equally among them. Item 5th. I desire
that my slaves be divided by valuation between my children mentioned in the
preceeding item 4th if it can be done to the satisfaction of all if not let
them be sold as my other property. Item 6th. I give and bequeath unto my
beloved sons John Donahoe & Nathaniel Rice a portion of my household furniture
Equal in value to what the others have received. Item 7th. I now ordain and
appoint my Son William W. Davison and my son in law George E. Wax to execute
this my will in every particular. Signed and Sealed in Presence of (Rest of
document missing or not provided).

His marker in the Carter Cemetary, Detroit, AL reads as follows: "Sacred
to the Memory of James Davison who departed this life June 17 1856 aged 68
years".

21 Sept. 1858/27 Feb 1863 the heirs of James A. Davidson sold 320 ac. to
Bengjamin Riggan, one of the heirs, in Monroe County, MS for $846.00, NN 1/4
Sec. 33 and SW 1/4 of Sec. 28 T11 RIOE (this parcel actually in Itawamba Co.).
Deed signed by W. W. Davidson and wife Elizabeth, Thomas L. Davidson and wife
Ann, Margaret J. Davidson, George . Wax and Eleanor A. Wax, Wm. M. McFadden
and wife Sarah A. J., Nathaniel R. Davison,, all of Marion County, AL., and
John D. Davidson of Placer Co., California by attorney W. W. Davidson, heirs at
Taw of James Davison, dec’d. (DB 22 p. 433-4 Monroe Co., MS*).

2 June 1860 the heirs of James Davison, namely W. W. Davison, Elizabeth
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James A. Davidson’s, heirs in 1858

Mary Caroline Davidson <Davison>.

Eleanor Araminta Davidson <Davison> "Ellen”.

Margaret Jane Davidson <Davison>. Born, 20 Feb 1827, in York
Co., SC, Died, 30 Nov 1861, in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. She
married” William H. Riley”.

Described in the will of her father James A. Davison as
“my beloved Daughter Margaret Jane in consideration of her
being a cripple” he bequeathed her "the Sum of One Thousand
Dollars out of the first money to come to the hands of my
executors, in addition to an equal share +of his large estate
with her brothers and sisters. She also received as a specific
bequest a Bay horse know as "the horse I got from Wigginton."

The nature of her handicap or disability is not known

She was one of the heirs selling their interest in their
fathers 1and in Itawamba Co., MS 2 June 1860. (DB 16 p. 150-2
Ttawamba Co., MS). Unfortunately, Margaret Jane apparently died
about fiv+ yea.s after her father, and apparently only a year
after her marriage. Her husband, Wm. Riley, age 50, b. in
Treland, a teacher, had remarried and Ann, age 40, by the 1870
census of Marion Co., p. 2, family 28. They had daughters Mary
2, and Permelia, 1/12.

Thomas Jefferson Davidson <Davison>.
John Donahoe Davidson <Davison>®. Born, 14 Mar 1832, in York
Co., SC. Died in Placer Co., Cal

He was apparently still single at the time of his
father’s death in 1856. In addition to a share of the estate,
he also was granted house hold furniture equal to that given
the others. In a deed dated 2 June 1860, he and other heirs of
his father sold their interest in certains lands in Itawamba
Co., MS. In that deed it is stated that he is living in Placer
(o, State of California, and had given Power of Attorney to his
brother William. (DB 16 p. 150-2 Itawamba Co., MS).

Nathaniel Rice Davidson <Davison>'°. Born, 14 Jun 1834, in York
Co., SC. Died, 1888,

In his father’s will Nathaniel recived an equal share of
the estate, plus house hold furniture equal to that already
received by his married brothers and sisters. He was apparently
not married in 1856. The 1860 Census of Monroe Co., MS lists a
N. R. Davidson 1iving with A. J. Davidson (Jr.) his cousin, a
merchant at Smithville, MS. He was age 26 born in SC
Sarah Isabella Davidson <Davison>.
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(signed Elisabeth) Davison, George (E.) Wax, Ellenor (Signed Ellen) A. Wax,
Bengjamin M. Riggan, Mary C. Riggan, T. J. (signed Thomas J.) Davison, Ann
Davison and Margaret J. Davison, ail of Marion Co., AL and John D. Davison of
Placer County, Cal. by atty W. W. Davison, parties of the first part, and A. J.
Davison and Cornelius Dowd of Monroe Co., MS as parties of the second part.
$250. six_undivided shares being six eights of lands in Itawamba Co., MS being
all that land in NE 1/4 Sec. 16 T. 11 R.10 lying E of Splunge Creek containing
66 acres m/1 AND SW 174 Sec 10, T.11 R10 E containing 158.72 ac also in
Ttawamba Co., MS. The acknowledgement states that Elisabeth Davison is the wife
of W. W.; Ellenor Wax is wife of George E. Wax, Mary C. Riggan is the wife of
Benj. M. Riggan; Ann Davison is the wife of Thomas J. Davison. Rec. Aug. 30,
1860. (DB 16 p. 150, Itawamba Co., MS*). On 2 June 1860 the heirs of James
Davidson, namely W. W. Davison, Eiizabeth Davison, George Wax and Elleanor A.
Wax, Benj. M. Riggan and Mary C. Riggan, T. J. Davison, Ann Davison, and
Margaret Davison, all of Marion County, Al., and John D. Davison of Placer Co.,
California sell their undivided 6/8 shares of land in Itawamba Co., MS. to A.
J. Davison and Cornelius Dowd of Monroe County, MS, presumably the owners of
the other two shares, for $252. /11 of NE 1/4 Sec. 16 TIl R 10F East of Splunge
Creek, and SW 1/4 Sec. 10 T11 RIOE. (DB 16 p. 150-2*). The other 2 shares
probably belonged to Nathaniel Rice Davidson, the purchaser, and Sarah Isabella
McFadden, who may have assigned her share to Cornelius Dowd, the other
purchaser.

28 Aug. 1861 James Davison to S. G. Hamide, D. Belk, M. W. Pearce, J. G.
Young, Charles Evans, Littleton Lindsay, E. N. Davison, F. Weaver and Hardy
Allen, Trustees of the Methodist Episcopal Church South at Harwells Church for
$1.00, 20 ac. of the north end of the E 1/2 of the SW 1/4 Sec. 9, TII RIOE for
burial and church purposes. James Davison (S). Proved by him 11 Sep. 1861. (DB
17 p. 27 Itawamba Co., MS*). This deed may have been that of James, son of
Andrew and nephew of James A. Andrew, but is shown here because it deals with
the church land refered to in Jame’s Deed to Robinson in 1816. James A. was
dead before this deed was made or recorded.

He married’ Sarah Love', daughter of Unknown Ancestor Love and Sarah
Unknown surname, & Nov 1818, in York Co., SC. Born, 28 Jan 1796, in York Co.,
SC®. Died, 12 Jul 1852, in Detroit, Marion Co., AL. Burial: Jul 1852, in Carter
Cemetary, Detroit, AL. Census: 1850, in Marion Co. AL.

Great-great-grandmother. Ahf. 9.

Her marker in Carter Cemetary, Detroit, AL, now broken, reads "In Memory
of Sarah, consort of James Davison who departed this life July 12, 1852 age
56." Children:

4 i. William Wilson® Davidson <Davison>.
ii. James L. Davidson <Davison>. Born, 4 Jan 1820, in York Co., SC.

Died, 19 Dec 1842, in Detroit, Marion (Lamar), Co., AL.

2 Dec 1840/9 Dec 1834 James L. Davidson patented 159.64
acres of land in Monroe Co., MS at a price of 25 cents per acre
NW 1/4 Sec. 33 T1IS RIOE (BLM Pontotoc MS Patent 16403, Monroe
Co., S Original Land Entries, Aberdeedn, MS.). His father
clained an adjoining parcel.

His obituary appeared in the Hamilton, AL. Newspaper. He
apparently died without issue. The land described above
apparently passed to his father as it was sold by his father,
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4. William Wilson® Davidson <Davison> (James A. <Davison>, 3)''. Born, 27
Jun 1819, in York Co., SC. Died, 27 Dec 1860, in Detroit, Marion Co., AL.
Burial: 1860, in Carter Cemetary, Detroit, AL. Census: 1850, in Marion Co., AL.
Census: 1860, in Marion Co., AL. Occupation: Farmer/Merchant.

Great-grandfather. Ahf. 4.

Merchant, Farmer and Postmaster at Millville, now Detroit, Lamar Co.,
AL., with his father James A. Davison. He died when only forty one.

On 22 Dec. 1849 a marriage bond was issued in Monroe Co., MS., for
William W. Davidson and Mary Elizabeth Riggan. Wm. W. Davidson and J(eremiah)
L. Riggan, the bride’s brother, were bondsmen. The rites were performed Dec. 24
1849 by Osborn Martin, M. G. Returned and recorded 8 Mar. 1850. (Marriage
Records White Sept. 12 1834-Jan. 31, 1850, Monroe Co., MS*).

The 1850 Census of Marion Co., AL., p. 142, shows W. W. Davidson, age 30,
a merchant with real estate valued at $150.00, b. SC, married to Eliz., age 17,
b. MS. Robert Bishop and William Chatham, probably boarders, live with them.

10 Mar 1851. William W. Davison was assignee of Thomas J. Welch of
military bounty land W 1/2 of NE 1/2 of NW 1/4 of Sec. 23 Township 22 Range 18
East in District of Lands subject to sale at Montgomery, AL. (Gandrud, "Alabama
Records” v. 121, p. 12).

Tn 1856 he was named as co-executor of his father’s will with his brother
in-law George . Wax, and received a share of the substantial estate, which
included extensive land holdings.

21 Dec. 1858 W. W. Davison and wife Elizabeth, with other heirs, sold an
interest in land inherited from his father in Monroe County, MS. to
brother-in-1law Benjamin Riggan (Monroe Co., MS DB 22 p. 433-4%). 2 June 1860,
the heirs of James A. Davison sold land in Itawamba Co., MS, to A. J. Davidson
(Itawamba Co., MS DB 16 p. 150%).

The 1860 Census of Marion Co., Al. p. 508 family 176 shows Wm. Davidson,
age 39, Male, Farmer/Merchant, with real estate valued at $7,000 and Personal
Property of $26,300., b. SC; Elizabeth , 26, F, b. MS; James age 7, M, b. AL;
Howard, age 4, M, b. AL; Nathaniel age 2, M, b. AL. Charles Price and Adam M.
Moore, farm hands, live with them. He died in Dec. of this same year of
pneumonia at age 41. In the 1860 Slave Census of Marion County, Western Dist.,
p. 403, Wn. Davidson has 8 slaves including 6 males ages 41, 37, 13, 7, 4, and
3; 2 females age 33 and 9.

The 1860 Agricultural Census of Marion County, AL, Pikeville District,
page 9 lists William Davidson with 300 imoroved acres of land and 2,500
unimproved acres, or a total of 2,800 acres valued at $6,250. He had 5 horses,
2 Asses or mules, 5 milch cows, 4 oxen, 12 cattle, 60 swine and raised 100 bu.
wheat, 1,000 bu. corn, 20 bu. Irish Potatoes, 5 bales of cotton, 30 bu. peas
and beans, 140 bu. sweet potatoes, 500¢ butter, and 8 tons hay.

His marker at Carter Cemetary, Detroit, AL reads "In memory of W. W.
Davison Died Dec. 27, 1860 aged 41" years 6 months"

Will and estate files not found due to burned court house. Following his
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death, his property and that he inherited from his father James apparently
passed to the heirs of his wife’s second husband, Rev. Jesse Dexter Carter,
whose will left all property to Mary Etta Carter Tooke, who Mary Elizabeth
Riggan Carter resided with after the death of her second husband. According to
Anna Carter Johnson, "my Dad and Aunt Della could only participate in the will
if they paid off two debts amounting to several hundred dollars. Mary Etta died
leaving the estate to Cicero who then married Ora Murray, widow of J. Howard
Davi(d)son, and who was also related, being a daughter of Mary Francis Riggan
and Janes Adair Murray."

He married’® Mary Elizabeth Riggan’®, daughter of Jeremiah Riggan "Jerry"
and Elizabeth Nicholson Egerton, 24 Dec 1849, in Monroe Co., Ms**. Born, 11 Mar
1833, in Splunge, Monroe Co., HS. Died, 18 Jun 1905, in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL.
Burial: 1905, in Carter Cemetary, Detroit, AL.

Great-grandnother. Ahf. 5.

Her marriage to William W. Davidson was performed by the Rev. Osborn
Martin, MG, and her brother Jeremiah L. Riggan served as Bondsman. In the
Carter Cemetary at Detroit, AL., her marker reads "Mary E. Carter, wife of Rev.

A. (Jesse Dexter) Carter”, her second husband. The author has a photocopy of
her at an advanced age which was provided by Anna Carter Johnson. She married
Rev. Carter by 1862. The 1870 census of Sanford Co., AL p. 323 family 37 lists
Jesse D. Carter 41, wife Elisabeth age 365 J. A. D. (probably James A.
Davidson) age 17; J. H. (probably Jeremiah Davidson) age 15; N. R. (probably
Nathaniel Rice Davidson) age 13; C. C. age 7 male; Mary E. age 5; Ardella age
3, Haley age 3/12 male, and a John M. Carter age 28 clerk in store. Children:

i. George Willis® Davidson <Davison>. Born, 7 Nov 1850, in
Detroit, Marion (Lamar), Co., AL, Died, 26 Aug 1852, in
Detroit, Marion (Lamar), Co., AL'®. Burial: 1852, in Carter
Cemetary, Detroit, AL.

ii. Sarah Davidson <Davison>. Born, 1852, in Detroit, Marion
(Lamar), Co., AL. Died, 1908, in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL.

9 James Andrew Davidson.
10 Jeremiah Howard Davidson,
Nathaniel Rice Davidson'®. Born, 4 Mar 1858, in Detroit, Marion
(Lamar), Co., AL. Died, 13 Sep 1880.
He was listed as age 13 in the household of his

step-father Rev. Jessie D. Carter in the 1870 census of Sanford
Co., town of Millville, p. 327 family 37.

5. Mary Caroline® Davidson <Davison> (James A. <Davison>, 3)'7. Born, 1 May

1823, in York Co., SC. Died, 1891 (2), in AL.
In 1856 she inherited a share of her father’s considerable estate as Mary
Caroline Riggan, and she and her husband bought land from the other heirs.

She married Benjamin Moody Riggan'®, son of Jeremiah Riggan "Jerry" and
Elizabeth Nicholson Egerton. Born, 1819, in Warren Co., NC. Died, 1900, in
Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Burial: 1900, in Carter Cemetary. Census: 1850, in
Itawamba Co., MS.

Known as Moody Riggan. He was left $1,000 in his uncle Benjamin Riggan’s
will of 1822.
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Mecklinburg County, NC, Craven County SC, York Co., SC, they were
all at the same place. The northern part of SC was originally
thought to be in NC, which issued land grants. The settlers had
to appeal to the Colonial Governor to have their NC grants on SC
land recognized. Detroit, originally Millville, Alabama, is now
in Lamar County, but at various times has been in Tuscaloosa,
Fayette, Marion, Sanford, and Lafayette Counties.

It is important to remember that county records usually
remain in the county in which they were recorded. To see the
original deeds to some lands in York Co., SC it is necessary to
go to Charlotte, NC, the county seat of Mecklinburg.

The records of many of the counties where our ancestors
lived were burned during the Civil War, or accidentally since
then. The job of the genealogist is infinitely harder in those
counties, since wills, deeds, and court records provide many
genealogical clues.

Where one county name is followed by another in parentheis,
the particular location is now in the latter named county. In all
cases the records remain in the parent, or original, county.

In Maryland, all patented Land parcels were given names,
such as "Pilgrim’s Rest" or "Whitaker’s Gamble". which sometimes
enables us to establish a relationship based on the names of the
properties they own or sell. This can be especially helpful where
a family uses the same names repeatedly in each family in each
generation.

Males became Tithable at age 16, and their first appearance
on tax rolls may give us a clue to their birth year.
Revolutionary War Pension Applications are a prime source of
information, for, in addition to giving the military history, the
pensioner was required to name all the places he had lived after
the fighting, and they often included other information about
their families. The presence or absence of a Revolutionary War
Pension Application is not itself significant since the pension
act was not passed until 1832, after most veterans had died.
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16 Jan. 1843 Benjamin M. Riggan bought from his father Jeremiah Riggan
and wife Elizabeth N. 80 ac. for $100. W 1/2 NW 1/4 Sec. 20 T12 R16W Monroe
Co., MS (DB 10 p. 287-8). There was an additional purchase in DB 22 p. 433 not
copied.

1850 census of Marion Co., AL., p. 174, dwelling 643, family 659 Benjamin
Riggan age 31, $500 property, b. AL; Mary, 27 b. SC., Sarah, age 2 b. AL;
Janieanne 1/12, b. AL. In the 1850 Slave Census of Marion Co., AL, Dist. 14,
BenJ. Riggan owns 4 slaves including 1 male age 20 and 3 femafes ages 16, 12,
and'8.

Benjamin R. Riggan received the following U. S. Land Grants covering land
now in Lamar Co., AL: 21 Mar. 1851 £15786 40 ac. NE 1/4 SW 1/4 Sec. 11 T 125 R
16W; 16 Oct. 1856 80 ac. # 19702 S 1/2 SW 1/4 Sec. 11 T 125 R16W; 30 Nov. 1857
# 28188 for 80 ac. NE 1/4 and SE 1/4 of NE 1/4 Sec. 15 TI2S RI6W; 16 Oct 1854 #
19705 80 ac E 1/2 SE 1/4 Sec. 3 also land grants 19703 and 19707 for 200 ac. E
1/2 NE 1/4 and S 1/4 NE 1/4 and N 1/2 SE 1/4, all in Section 10, also 41920 40
ac. SE 1/4 SE 1/4 also in Sec. 10, and also grants 14492 and 47240 for 80 ac.
NW 1/4 NW 1/4 and NW 1./4 SE 1/4 Sec. 11, all in T12S RI6H. (Lamar Co., AL.
Tract Book 1).

21 Sept. 1858/27 Feb. 1863, Benjamin M. Riggan bought 320 acres for $846
from the heirs of his father-in-law James A. Davison, NW 1/4 of Sec. 33 and Sw
1/4 of Sec. 28 T11 R10E Monroe Co.MS (DB 22 p. 433-4).

The 1860 census of Marion Co., AL, p. 529, dwelling 362, family 342
Benjamin Riggan 40 male farmer, $4,000 real estate, $8,500 personal property,
b. AL., wife Mary, 36, b. SC, Sarah, female, 11, and Florence age 7. Jemeanne
not shown, and possibly deceased.

The 1870 census of Sanford Co., AL, Town of Detrit, page 321. family 25
Benjamin Riggan is age 51, farmer, real estate value $2,200., personal property
valte $1,500 born in NC. Wife Mary C., age 46 b. SC; Sarah E. age 20 b. AL.

4 Apr 1871. Benjamin M. Riggins and James Davison of Marion County
witnessed the War of 1812 Pension Application of William Jefferies (*Alabama
Records" v. 236, p. 57-8) Children:

Sarah® Riggan'®. Born, 1848, in Marion (Lamar), Co., AL.
Jemeanne Riggan-°. Born, 1850, in Marion Co., AL.
iii. Florence Riggan®®. Born, 1853, in Marion (Lamar), Co., AL

6.  Eleanor Araminta® Davidson <Davison> "Ellen” (James A. <Davison>, 3)**
Born, 24 Aug 1825, in York Co., SC. Died, 21 Dec 1920, in Smithville, Monroe
Co., MS. Burial in Smithville, Monroe Co., MS.

The following account was provided by Richard T. Wax, P. 0. Box 60,
Anory, MS 38821, who is a descendant of Eleanor and her husband George Wax:

"The records show that Eleanor Araminta Davison, born Aug. 24, 1825 in
York District, S. C. died Dec. 21, 1920 at Smithville, MS, was married to
George Etter Wax in Marion County, AL Feb. 6 1843. Gn Sept 22 1866 purchased
from Benjamin F. Johnson a half section of land near Smithville, the East 1/2
of Section 11, Township 12, Range 8 East. Part of this land has remained in the
Wax family since that purchase.”

She knitted a bedspread for each of her twelve children just after the
Civil War while Tiving at Smithville, HS, where she, as a widow, managed a farm
consisting of a full section of land, and operated a General Merchandise store
in Smithville, and ran a hotel for students attending Smithville College.
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In the will of her father she received an equal share of the large estate
with her brothers and sisters.

She married®” George Etter Wax®, son of Henry Etter Wax and Nancy W.
Dickinson, 6 Feb 1843, in Marion Co., AL. Born, 1 Jul 1818, in Greensburg, KY.
Died, 6 Sep 1876, in Smithville, Monroe Co., MS. Occupation: Merchant.

See "Wax - Burdine” by R. T. Wax, Box 60, Amory MS. 38821 (1986)."George
Etter Wax ran a store at Hillville (now Detroit) Alabama according to entries
made in the store ledger in 1852 and 1853 and a license issued January 6, 1843
by the State Treasurer in Tuscaloosa, now in posession of Richard Wax.

He was the son of Henry Etter Wax and Nancy W. Dickinson. Henry Etter Wax
(1791-1821) born Fincastle, Va. and died Greensburg, KY. His father Peter Wax
(1768-1804) born Berks Co., PA and died Fincastle, VA. Henry Etter Wax's
grandfather, Yenry Wax was born in Switzerland, came to Berks Co., PA served in
the American Revolution and died in Botentort Co., VA."

The 1850 census of Marion Co., AL., p. 142, dwelling 217, family 225
(next door to William W. Davidson) lists George F. Wax, age 31, farmer, real
estate $400., b. KY, Eleanor age 25 b. SC, William I. age 5, Laura I, age 1,
Mary E. age 4

The 1850 agricultural census of Marion Co., AL., p. 41 lists Geo. E. Wax,
55 ac. improved land value $400 and 45 ac. unimproved land val. $70, 3 horses,
5 milch cows, 2 oxen, 8 cattle, 3 sheep, 30 swine, raised 19 bu. wheat, 200 bu.
corn, 1 bale cotton, 20 Tbs. wool, 50 bu. sweet potatoes, 100 Ibs. butter, 25
Ibs. beeswax and honey, and manufactured $40. worth of goods. In the 1850 Slave
Census of Marion Co., AL, Western Dist., p. 403, Geo. E. Wax owns 5 slaves
including 2 males age 50 and 2; 3 females age 18, 5, and 1/12.

George . Wax received U. S. Land grant #19693 16 Oct. 1854 for 80 ac. N
1/2 of NE 1/4 Sec. 18 T12S R1SW just east of Detroit. (Tract Book 1, Lamar Co.,
AL

The 1860 census of Western District, Marion Co., AL, p. 508 dwelling and
family 177, George E. Wax, 41, farmer, real estate 52,000, personal property
$3,650, b. KY; Eleanor A., 31'b. SC., Wn. T. age 15, Marietta age 15, Laura J.
age 11, Francis R age 9 male, Sarah L. age 7, Nathaniel age 5, John A. age 2,
Lucien Male age 3/12.

The 1860 Agricultural census of Marion Co., AL., Pikeville district, page
9 lists George . Wax who owns 50 acres of improved land and 890 acres
unimproved land, valued at $1,100. He had 1 horse, 2 asses or mules, 5 milch
cows, 2 oxen, 17 cattle, 9 sheep, 21 swine and raised 600 bu. corn, 50 bu.
Irish potatoes, 18 bales cotton, 60 bu peas and beans, 50 bu. sweet potatoes,
and 50 Ibs. butter, 3 tons hay.

The 1870 census of Monroe Co., MS, Twshp 12, 1 July 1870, p. 220,
dwelling 432, family 472, George Wax, age 50, b. SC, land $2,000, property
$1,000, b. SC (incorrect), Ellen age 45 b. MS (incorrect), Laura age 26,
Francis R. age 20, Sarah Love, 18, Remi 7 (Nathaniel) age 14, Terry 12, John A.
10, Sarah 8, Katie 4, Ellen 1. Children:

Mary Etta® Wax”®. Born, 1845, in Marion Co., AL

William Thomas Wax. Born, 5 Jun 1845, in Marion Co., AL. He
married Lucy Harkney, 1 Feb 1871.

Laura J. Wax™*. Born, 1849, in Marion Co., AL.

Francis R. Wax. Born, 1850, in Marion Co., AL.

Sarah Love Wax. Born, 1852, in Marion Co., AL.
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11 vi. Nathaniel Terry Wax.
12 vii. John Andrew Wax.
viii. Jennie Wax. She married Gaines Davis.
ix. Lucien Wax. Born, 1860.
x. Sarah D. Wax. Born, 1863.
xi. Katie Wax. Born, 1866.
xii. Ellen Wax. Born, 1869.

7. Thomas Jefferson® Davidson <Davison> (James A. <Davison>, 3)°%. Born, 20
Jul 1830, in York Co. SC. Died in AL.

Thomas J. Davidson received land grant 19696 16 Oct. 1854 for the SE 1/4
Sec. 9 TI2S RISW Lamar Co., (then Marion Co.) AL (Plat Book 1, Lamar Co., AL).
According to Margaret Sizemore Douglas and the 1860 census of Marion Co.,
Pikeville, p. 529, he married Rachel age 25, b. MS, and has children John, age
4, and Georgia, age 2, both b. AL., however, the deeds by the heirs of James A.
Davison recite that ANN Davison, named as an heir, is wife of Thomas J.
Davison. There may have been t.0 wives, or more likely, she used two names.

He married Rachel Unknown surname. Born, 1835, in SC.

While Margaret Davidson Sizemore Douglas lists the wife of Thomas
Jefferson Davidson as Rachel, the deed from the heirs of James A. Davidson on
21 Sept 1858 lists his wife as Ann, as does a similar deed to A. J. Davidson 2
June 1860 for land in Itawamba Co., MS. Children:

i. John® Davidson®®. Born, 1856, in Marion (Lamar), Co., AL.
ii. Georgia Davidson. Born, 1858, in Marion (Lamar), Co.. AL.

8.  Sarah Isabella® Davidson <Davison> (James A. <Davison>, 3)°. Born, 28
Mar 1838, in York Co., SC.

The 1850 Census of Marion Co., AL, indicates her year of birth was 1836
rather than 1838, which is shown on family records. As Sarah Isabella McFadden,
she inherited a share in her father’s estate in 1856. The 1860 census of
Ttawamba Co., MS, p. 342, Smithville, dwelling 2309 family 2307 lists William
M. McFadden, age 31, farmer b. AL., wife Sarah age 23 b. SC, Robert G. age 4;
Sarah V., age 3, Almira J., age 1. A1l children b. AL.

She married®® William M. McFadden. Born, 1829, in AL. Occupation: Farmer.

One of the heirs who signed a deed from heirs of James A. Davidson to
Benjamin Riggin and also to A. J. Davidson.(1858 and 1860). In the 1860 Slave
Census of Itawamba Co., MS., p. 477, Wm. McFadden owns 2 male slaves age 18 and
15. In the 1860 Census of Itawamba Co., MS, family 2304, he has land valued at
$500., and Personal Property $4,000. Children:

i. Robert G.* McFadden™. Born, 1856, in Marion Co., AL.

ii. Sarah V. McFadden®. Born, 1857, in Marion Co., AL.
iii. Almira J. McFadden. Born, 1859, in Marion Co., AL.
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| 2 James Andrew® Davidson (William Wilson <Davison>, 4)'. Born, 4 Jan 1853,
in Detroit, Marion Co., AL. Died, 25 Jun 1920, in Guin, Marion Co., AL*"
Burial: 1920, in City Cemetary, Guin, Lamar Co., AL. Census: 1900, in Lamar
Co., AL. Census: 1910, in Marion Co, AL. Occupation: Farmer/Merchant

Grandfather. Ahf. 2.

His father died when he was little more than seven years old. His mother
soon remarried Rev. Jesse Dexter Carter. He was a Presidential Elector from
Precinct F, Millville, Lamar Co., AL. in 1902. Although his father had a
considerable estate, the natural children of the Rev. Jesse Dexter Carter, his
step-father, appear to have gotten most of it.

A photograph, copied by Lutie Davidson, shows him to be slender, with a
high forehead, a moustache and a small goatee. His children were unanimous in
declaring James a softie - a gentle man who was reluctant to discipline his
Kids--or to collect the debts owed him, which led to the failure of his
mercantile business at Detroit, and apparently caused some hard times. In the
1810 and 1820 censuses we find he an E1fleda farming and running a Boarding
House in Guin. His children apparently adored him, and he them. He attended
Southern University in Greesnsboro, Al., and regretted he was unable to
graduate. James owned several parcels of land in and near Detroit, most of this
was sold shortly after the turn of the century. T find no record that he owned
the hotel or boarding house property in Guin

James first appears in the census records in 1860, Marion County, AL.
Pikeville, page 508 family 176. His father William is 39, a farmer/Merchant
with real estate valued at $7000 and Personal property worth $26,300, a fortune
in those days. Mother Elizabeth (the census shows a N or a V for the middle
initial, which would not be correct) is 26, born in MS. James, Howard and
Nathaniel are ages 7, 4 and 2.

In the 1870 census of Samford Co., AL T12 R16 for town of Detroit taken
22 Sept 1870 lists the Davidson children in the household of Jesse D. Carter
but_shows only their initials and does not list their last name. Rev. Carter,
listed as a Farmer/Merchant age 41, born in MS, with land valued at $4,000 and
personal property of $25,000, a fortune after the just-ended Civil War. Wife
ETisabeth (sic) age 36 b. MS; J. A. D. (James A. Davidson) age 17; J. H
(Jeremiah Howard Davidson) age 15; N. R. (Nathaniel Rice Davidson) age 13; C
C. male age 7; Mary . age 5; Ardella age 3; Haley male age 3 months, and John
M. Carter age 28, clerk in store, relationship if any not known. They live near
Moody and Mary Riggan. William Davidson’s daughter Sarah is not listed. She
would have been age 18 and might have been married

The 1880 Census of Lamar County, AL., Millville, page 548, family 113, we
find James "H".(Sic) Davidson, age 26, a dry goods merchant, 1iving with
brothers Howard, listed as a merchant, and Nathaniel, a student, and a Basil
Dorsey, also a student

15 Nov. 1881/Mar. 1885 J. A. Davidson and Co. purchased from W. T. Box
and wife Josephine 320 ac. for $440 the NE 1/4 of Sec. 34 TI1 RIOE and N 1/4
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Sec. 35 TI1 RIOE in Monroe Co., MS. (DB 47 p. 327). There were additional
purchases by Davidson Bros. recorded in DB 47 p. 610, which are not Tlegible,
and in DB F or 48 p. 453 and p. 518 which were not found (Monroe Co., MS Deed
Index).

The marriage license of James A. Davidson and Elfleda Curtis, issued in
Lamar County, AL., 8 July 1885, shows that the minister who married them, D. W.
Ward, Minister of God, was also the bondsman. From a copy of the invitation
provided by Lutie Davidson we find that they were married in the home of
Elfleda’s mother, Columbia Bryan Curtis White. The invitation reads "Mrs. C. L.
White Requests your presence at her residence at the marriage of her daughter
Elfleda Curtis to Mr. James A. Davidson, Thursday Evening, July 23, 1885 at
eight o’clock, Detroit, Alabama."

11 Jan. 1890. J. A. and E. C. Davidson for $245.00 sold to W. J. Holoway
SE 1/4 SE 1/4 Sec. 18 T11 RISE about 8 ac. excepting an old grave yard by the
01d trace, also SE 1/4 S 1/4 Sec 18 T11 RISW of 48 ac,( Marion Co. Al. DB 2
.472-3). Also in 1890 J. A. and E. C. Davidson to W. H. Matthews Lot 80 town
of Hamilton for $20. (Marion Co., AL DB 3 p. 560%).

The following is a copy of a letter from James A. Davidson to his wife,
E1fleda, copied by Ludie Davidson, who, after ten years of marriage and six
children was visiting her ailing mother in Missippi

Detroit, AL. April 3, 1895: to: Mrs. E. C. Davidson, Columbus, Miss.

"My dear good wife. Enclosed please find P. 0. Money Order for fifteen
dollars which T hope will reach you in due time. Please dear excuse me for not
sending it before this date. I have just returned from prayer meeting, how I do

wish I could have accompanied my sweet wife tonight instead of going by my
Tonely self.

*T hope you are all getting on well, hope Grandma can come home next week
as T do want to see my Toving wife so much. I miss you dear one, more and more
everyday. T don’t see how I could get along without you. Tommie, my heart is
running over with love and good words when you return home. You can have no
Jdea how much 1 have for you and just know you have an abundance for your dear
usband.

“1 sent you a long letter this week, hope it has reached you by now. If
you want me to send for you let me know what time and what to send and I will
attend to it. Would wagon or hack suit best? Can get a good box frame and
wagon. Now you study all over and let me know as soon as you decide. Now do not
stand or hesitate because you think it will trouble me. That is my pleasure to
Confort my family and gratify them. The roads are getting much better now. Will
you want to bring many things home? Tommie, you do just what suits you and feel
assured that I am ready to do anything in the world that is in my power to do
to gratify your feelings. Hope your eyes are doing better now and will be well
before you come home. You must try and keep strong and not get too much
weakened down. 1 know it is bad having to do so much and see after the little
ones, too. 1 do hope you will get to visit some before you leave this time, so
you can have some rest and pleasure before making the trip home. It would help
You so much to start home on.

“I guess you feel almost like you were a young girl again being gone so
Tong and getting so many letters, I believe I have gotten up a regular courting
match with you. Don’t you think as I will that is allright...?...2...2...2%in
feeling as much so as when we first started out for I know our love is still
strong and true to each other and grows more so as we get older.

“"Now I will tell you again to take good care of your dear self and 1 will
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not write much. Kiss Grandna and all the children for Papa. My heart sends much
Tove in return for the many sweet words you sent me in your last letter for
they were precious and sweet to me and you can find just as many more in the
next Tetter for they are appreciated so much by the one who Toves you more than
all the tongues can tell and dearer than all the world to me. Bye, sweet wife

Faithfully and lovingly by thine own husband,

JAD"

1900 Census of Lamar County, Millville Beat 7, page 128, family 128 James
D. Daviston (sic), born 1/53, age 47, married for 14 years, a farmer, is
married to Eifleda C., born 5/68, age 32, Married 14 years, mother of 7
children of whom 6 are living. They have the following children: B. Eugenia,
female, born 9/86 age 13; Jessie C. b. 8/89 age 10; Tessie Love b. 2/91 age 9
James A. b. 6/92, age 7; Willian R. b. 6/84 (should be 6/94) age 5; Allice
(sic) F. b, 3/96 age 4. Also living with them is Columbia L. White,
Mother-in-law b. 11/46, age 53, widow

In 1902 he was a Presidential Elector from Precinct 7, Millville, Lamar
County, AL.

In 1810, they had moved to Guir, pct. 15, Marion County, AL, where they
were in Census beat 2, Census Vol. 78, ED 87, dwelling and family 15. James A
Davidson, age 57, married 24 years, Manager of Hotel, Owner, he and all others
in the family could read and write, Rented home. Elfleda, wife, 41, married 24
years, 12 children, 10 Tiving, Cook in Hotel, Owned hotel, Berta E. age 23,
Tessie L., 19, teacher, James A., 17, Farm Labor, Hired Out; William R., 15
Farm Labor, Hired Out; Alice F., 14, student; John B., 9, student; Grace L., 7
Student; Maggie, 3; Norma L., 1/12. Also, Gus Hallmark, who later Tived in
Wichita Kansas, age 23, was a boarder

16 May 1911. E. C. and J. A. Davidson to J. F. White (Elfleda’s
step-brother) quit claim deed for $1. to land in Sec. 12 and 13 in TI2S RI6H
(DB 34 p. 71 Lamar Co., AL*). This was apparently a deed for security against a
mortgage of same date acknowledging a debt of $460. (Lamar Co. DB 2 p. 375-7%)
The mortgage is recorded Mortgage Book 66, p. 406%, Lamar Co. Al. in amount of
$546.99 due 1 Dec. 1912, and which was marked satisfied 25 Dec. 1919

1920 Federal Census, Marion County, Al. Guin Town, Pct. 15, V.65, ED. 69
p. 45, dwelling 44, family 45 (Farm). James A. Davidson, age 66, Keeper of
Boardinghouse; E1fleda, wife, age 51; Eugena, age 33, John B. age 19; Grace L.
age 17; Madge S., age i3, Norma L. age 11; Percy R., age 8.

His death certificate states that his parents were William Davidson and
Elizabeth Riggan, and that he died of Apoplexy. Although a grave separates
them, James and E1fleda are buried in the City Cemetary in Guin, Ala. Their
markers state their dates and places of birth

He married® E1fleda Curtis®®, daughter of John Alexander Curtis and
Columbia Lenora Bryan, 23 Jul 1885, in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Born, 17 May
1868, in Columbus, Lowndes Ce., MS. Died, 19 May 1951, in Fayette, Fayette Co.,
AL. Burial: 1951, in City Cemetary, Guin, Marion Co., AL. Resided: 1930, in
Birmingham, Jefferson Co., AL. Resided: 1940, in Birmingham, Jefferson Co., AL.

Grandnother Ahf. 3.

Her father, a former confederate soldier who was made a prisoner of war
several times by the Yankees, died before she was two, and we gather that times
were not always easy for E1fleda as she grew up, she having said that her
step-father, a Captain John S. White, tended to favor his own children in all
things. After her mother remarried, they lived in Pikeville near Detroit in
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Lamar County, AL., and after her marriage to James, they lived in Detroit until
after 1902 when they moved to Hamilton and later Guin, and operated a boarding
house_in Guin after her husband’s mercantile business failed. Married when she
was 17 to a man fifteen years older, she was 43 when she had her last child,
and she was the disciplinarian in the family, since her husband was too gentle
for the role.

She and her husband, and their sizeable family, moved to Guin from
Detroit, probably soon after 1910. Bill Sizemore says he visited at their home
in Guin on several occasions, and he remembers it as being a mile or so north
on U.S. 78 toward Hamilton, and off on a road that turned to the right, and
that it was near the top of a hill. I can remember my mother saying that their
o1d house had burned, but I believe she was refering to the one in Detroit. It
is unknown if this house still stands.

Following the death of her husband, she moved to Birmingham to avail the
younger children of a better education. Lutie Davidson recounts that the
children boarded the train in Guin carrying lamps, pictures, and other items
which could not be shipped with the furniture. On July 1, 1922 her daughter
Tessie bought the big old house at 8 So. 6lst Street for her, although Tessie
herself Tived in California until the late 1930's, when she moved in with
Elfleda and Genie. The deed was only in Tessye’s name, indicating she paid for
it all herself.

As I knew her, "Grandmother Davidson" was small, slender, and very
stooped by what we now call osteoporosis. She also had palsy, or Parkinson’s
disease, and trembled noticeably at all times. Despite her size, she was a
formidable woman. For many years she and her daughter Genie lived alone in a
big old two storied house at 8 So. 6lst Street in Birmingham. The only heat was
from fireplaces, and the only bath was upstairs. She built the fires, carried
in the coal, and kept things going until, in her Tater years, she and Genie
Tived with Madge in Fayette, where they both died. Genie was severly crippled
with arthritis and could perform no chores. E1fleda wore her long hair in a
bun, and would promise any reward if you would brush her hair...or if you would
pledge to never smoke or drink, and I did all three often. She was a
well-informed and gentle lady who never spoke i1l of anyone.

Her father’s estate papers include the bill from Dr. J. Lanier McCabe for
obstetrical services for her birth. There was a $3.00 charge on May 15, 1868
for 1 visit and mid-wife, and on May 17, for obstetrical services, $35.00.,
with $15.00 rec’d on account. In Estate Book 3 , docket 1672 in the Chancery
Court of Lowndes County, MS, shows that a W. C. Bishop was appointed Guardian
ad litum for Elfleda, to protect her interests in the sale of her father’s
one-third interest in the Columbus (also know as the Curtis) Hotel.

2 Dec. 1881 W. B. Bryan (her uncle) and John A. Suell conveyed Tot 10
square 19 South of Main in Columbus, S, being the remainder of a 99 year lease
renewable forever dated 1821, to Elfleda Curtis for $1,070.00. (Lowndes Co., MS
DB 58 p. 504%).

In 1928, she petitioned the Chancery Court in Lowndes Co., MS, for the
appointment of an administrator for the estate of her uncle, John Bryan.

The house in which she lived in Birmingham, at 8 So. 6lst Street,
purchased for her by her daughter Tessye from Richard W. and Lillian Carlton 1
July 1922 (DB 1465 p. 108* Jefferson Co., AL) is still standing, although in a
much changed neighborhood. Children:

i. Berta Eugenia® Davidson "Genie"'. Born, 14 Sep 1886, in
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Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Died, 1961, in Fayette, Fayette Co.,
AL. Burial in City Cemetary, Fayette, AL. Resided in
Birmingham, Jefferson Co., AL. Occupation: Disabled.

A spinster, “Genie" was severly crippled from an early
age with osteo-arthritis. Her knees and elbows were both rigid.
A quiet woman of slight build and pleasant disposition, she
Tived with her mother until both were unable to live alone,
then moved in with Max and Madge Branyon at Fayette, where she
is buried.

Lana Arless Davidson®. Born, 1888, in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL.
Died, 1889, in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Burial: 1889, in Carter
Cemetary.

Lana died in infancy, and she shares a marker in the
Carter Cemetary at Detroit, Al. with her sister Mary C. and her
grandnother, Columbia Bryan Curtis White.

Jessie Curtis Davidson.

Tessye Love Davidson RN'. Born, 6 Feb 1891, in Detroit, Lamar
Co., AL. Died, 26 Aug 1964, in Oak Ridge, Anderson Co., TN**.
Burial: 1964, in City Cemetary, Fayette, AL. Occupation:
Nurse/Army WHI.

Tessye served as an Army nurse in France during World War
1. As a result of flu and pneumonia, she had a slight health
problen thereafter. She lived for many years in San Diego,
rooming with a Canadian Nurse, Alice Davidson. It was she who
bought the house at 8 So. 6lst Street in Birmingham for her
widowed mother, and in later years she moved back to Birmingham
to help care for her mother and Genie. She became engaged to a
young Doctor in France. who was kilicd in action. She never
married despite many offers. She helped the younger members of
her family in many ways. Tall and slender, she wore her hair in
a bun, and had a slight moustache. She was a nurse
anesthesiologist at Woodlawn Hospital.

Ist July 1922 From Richard W. amd Lillian Carlton to
Tessye Love Davidson Lot 7, Block 2 survey of Kehm, Townley and
Colvin as recorded in Map Book 3 p. 4a Probate Judges Office,
Birmingham, Jefferson County, AL. Recorded 18 June 1925, Vol.
1465 p. 108*. This was the purchase of the home at 8 So. 6lst
Street for her mother, E1fleda.

James A. Davidson Jr. “Jin'.

William Roy Davidson.

Alice Fielder Davidson.

John Bryan Davidson.

Grace Lenora Davidson.

Mary Cooper Davidson’. Born, 1904, in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL
Died, 1906, in Guin, Marion Co., AL.

She shares a cemetary marker with her sister, Lana
Arless, and her grandmother, voiumbia White, in the Carter
Cemetary at Detroit, AL.

Madge Stanley Davidson.
Norma Lee Davidson.
Col. Richard Percy Davidson.
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10.  Jeremiah Howard® Davidson (William Wilson <Davison>, 4)'°. Born, 17 Mar
1856, in Detroit, Marion (Lamar), Co., AL. Died, 14 Aug 1906, in Detroit, Lamar
Co., AL. Burial: 1906, in Carter Cemetary, Detroit, AL. Occupation: Farmer.

He was listed in the household of his step-father Rev. Jesse D. Carter in
the 1870 census of Sanford Co., Millville, page 323 family 37.

He married Ora Artelia Murray’®, after 1861 (?), in Detroit, Lamar Co.,
AL. Born, 25 Dec 1876, in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Died, 20 Feb 1957, in
Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Burial: 1957, in Carter Cemetary, Detroit, AL.

The author remembers "Aunt Ora* as a charming, pleasant widow who made my
visits to her farm happy and well-fed. She had a warm heart and a good sense of
humor. Children:

i. Jeremiah® Davidson. Born in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL.
ii. Orman Davidson. Born in Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Occupation:
Pharmacist. He married Hattie Lou Unknown Surname.

11.  Nathaniel Terry® Wax. Born, 25 Feb 1856, in Marion Co., AL. Died in
Smithville, Monroe Co., MS. Occupation: Farm/Merchant.

He married Elizabeth Ann Burdine, 17 Dec 1878 (2), in Smithville, Monroe
Co., MS. Children:

i. John Cayce® Wax.
ii. Gaston Burdine Wax.

iii. Irene Wax <Finney>.
iv. Fannie Love Wax <Brooks>.

12.  John Andrew® Wax. Born, 17 Apr 1858 (?), in Marion Co., AL
He married Lela Davis. Born, 26 Dec 1899, in Maben, MS. Children:

Otis® Wax.
John A. Wax.
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13.  Jessie Curtis® Davidson (James Andrew, 9)'. Born, 4 Aug 1889, in Detroit,
Lamar Co., AL. Died, Jan 1973, in Tallassee, AL. Burial in Sulligent, Lamar
Co., AL.

There were so many Davidson children that we usually think of them in
generations. 1 sometimes think of Jesse as the oldest, because her younger
brothers and sisters told that she had a necessarily large part in their
rearing, but she was actually the third child, her arthritic sister Genie being
the oldest, and Lana Arless, who died as a child, being next.

A wonderful lady, tall, slender, and the wife of a country doctor. She
wore her greying hair in a bun, .nd made the author’s summer visits an
adventure. She was very sympathetic when I chewed a whole box of Feen-A-Mint.
According to Margaret Davidson Sizemore Douglas she attended Franklin Acadamey
in Columbus, HS. She and Tessye had much to do with the raising of the younger
children.

She married”® Dr. Daniel Middleton Sizemore®®. Born, 1879 (?), in Marion
Co., AL*’. Died, 1954, in Amory, Monroe Co., MS. Burial in Sulligent, Lamar
Co., AL. Resided: before 1923, in Guin, Marion Co., AL. Resided: after 1923, in
Sulligent, Lamar Co., AL. Occupation: Physician.

He was the son of Thomas Sizemore who married a Middleton.

Dr Sizemore received his medical degree at what is now Vanderbilt
University in Nashville, TN. He first practiced medicine in Guin, AL., and
moved to Sulligent about 1923. It was probably in Guin that he and Jesse
Davidson were married. His son, Bill, relates that the three sons were all born
in Guin.

Dr. Sizemore was a kindly country doctor who usually had a cigar in his
mouth. When I visited them in Sulligent as a boy, he would let me ride with him
to make house calls out in the county. He was a very pleasant man, and was
Toved by all who knew him. Once he saved a woman whose intestines were lying in
the street after she had been ripped open by wild dogs who attacked her in the
street. I remember that he was present at the time Elfleda, my grandmother,
died. Although I Tived in Kansas at the time, I was fortunate that I was able
to visit with him in the hospital at Amory, MS, shortly before his death.

1 had assumed a1l of my life that he was born and died in Sulligent, but
he actually practiced for some time at Guin, probably moving to Sulligent in
the late 20°s or early 30°s. The 1910 Census of the United States, Marion
County, AL, Guin City Tists on ED 87, Sheet 2, Vol. 78, Daniel M. Sizemore, age
30 with wife Jessie D., age 20, and son James M., age 5/12 yr.

The 1920 U. S. Census of Marion County, AL., City of Guin, Vol. 65, ED
69, Sheet 6 Line 59 lists Daniel M. Sizemore, age 40, Physician, b. AL, Jessie
C. age 30, James M., 10, Eugene I, age 6, Roy age 1 2/12. Children:

22 i. James Middleton® Sizemore "Doc".
2 ii. Thomas Eugene Sizemore.
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Introduction

Like many genealogists, I waited until all of those who knew
were dead or incapacitated before I began serious research on my
Davidson and Holliman families and their ancestors, which made my
task much more difficult. Because my Davidsons and Hollimans have
only my father’s family in common, and because of the enormous
volume of materials, I have elected to present the two families
in seperate books.

The author has done original research in the relevant
counties in Alabama, Mississippi, Tennessee, Kentucky, and South
carolina. Most of the materials cited in those locations has been
personally copied, abstracted or examined. In all other
locations, I have not had the opportunity to do on-site research
as of yet, and have generally had to rely on secondary sources
for my information, although I have been able to order and
examine a large number of copies of original or recorded
documents. Where I have a copy of such documents in my posession,
a "% follows the citation.

Where I have relied on secondary sources, I have striven to
document the source, and, if known, the source cited by the
secondary source. Because of the computer program used in
composing this work, footnotes could not be used, So most source
citations are given in abbreviated form immediately after the
entry, with complete citations and general bibliographies shown
in endnotes following each family section. In using secondary
sources I have not generally used quotation marks around mere
recitations of fact as recorded on original documents. I have
tried to be conscientions in giving proper credit for summaries,
opinion and conjecture.

In the interest of space and time, ancestral relatives who
are not in the direct line of descent are usually carried only to
the brothers and sisters of the person in the direct line, with
only the names of their offspring listed. Reference to the
endnotes may reveal where further information may be found on
those lines.

Since revisions and corrections are continuously being made,
in some cases "Ibid" may refer to a reference further back if
there has been an interveining citation. A good editor should
catch such goofs, but who knows.

To determine the father of any individual refer to the
arabic numeral at the beginning of his biography. Look for that
number under the children listed in the previous generation. He
will be listed under his father. The first name of the father
will also be shown following the individuals name, but there may
be more than one person of that name in the earlier generation.

Each individual, under their parent’s listing, will have a
small roman numeral by their name, which indicates the
approximate order of birth, if known. If the individual is not
known to have had children, everything known will be displayed
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iii. William Roy Sizemore™®. Born, 15 Nov 1918, in Guin, Marion Co.,
AL. Residence in P. 0. Box 359, Tallassee, AL 36078. Resided:
before 1943, in Sulligent, Lamar Co., AL. Qccupation:

Timber Executive. He married Mary Hornsby>®.

The birthdate or year of birth of he and his brothers
were given to me by him in a phone call 14 Feb 199. I enjoyed
a visit with Bi11 and his wife Mary at their home north of
Tallassee, AL., on 17 Feb 1996, some fifty years since I haad
Tast seen them in 1946. A1l three of us had changed a Tittle.

Roy, as I knew him, or Bill, as everyone else now knows
him, is an Auburn Graduate and served in the U. S. Army in
WAI1. He has been very successful as a timber executive and in
the forestry management business. They settled in Tallassee,
Mary’s hometown, shortly after WHII. Bill is still active in
the firm of Sizemore and Sizemore, and teaches one month of
each quarter at Duke University, and has also lectured as far
afield as New Zealand.

811" and Mary adopted three children. One died as a young
man about 1972. Bill, Jr., participates in the family business:
The daughter is married and has as couple of children, names
and ages not noted. The Sizemores have also provided a college
education for several foreign students. They, true to their
Ulster Scots ancestry, are active in the Presbyterian Church.

He was several years older than I, so I did not see as
nuch of him growing up as I would have Tiked. He is a very
genial, pleasant person, and has the characteristic cleft chin
of the Davidsons.

14 James A.® Davidson Jr. "Jin" (James Andrew, 9)'. Born, 21 Jun 1892, in
Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Died in Great Bend, KS. Military Sv in World War 1
Occupation: US ArmyWHI/Lunbr.

Jim served in the U. S. Army in France in World War I, participating in
the Meuse Argonne Drive, and served with a fighter squadron in some capacity
Jate or after the war. He moved to Newton and later Great Bend, Kansas, where
he managed a lumber yard. He was a tall, slender, very pleasant, easy going man
With a shrew for a wife. He lost one eye in an automobile wreck in fog around
1940.

He married Stella Guin®®. Born in Marion Co., AL. Died in Great Bend, KS.
The author visited she and Jim several times in Great Bend, Kansas, where
Jim Managed a retail lumber yard.. Children:

2 i. John Wayne® Davidson.

15.  William Roy” Davidson (James Andrew, 9)'. Born, 9 Jun 1894, in Detroit,
Lamar Co., AL. Died, 1944, in Kerrville, TX. Resided in Bay City, TX.
Occupation: Sulphur Exec.

Called Roy, he served in the U. S. Navy during World War 1 aboard the
U.5.S. Bushnell. He faithfully contributed to the support of Elfleda and Genie,
never missing a month. An Executive with Texas Gulf Sulphur Co. He is the only
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one of my mother’s siblings I never met.

He married Willie Gottschalk "Bi11"*'. Born in Matagordos, TX. Died,
1958, in Kerrville, TX. Resided in Bay City, TX. Children:

25 Ann® Davidson.
2 ii. Barbara Davidson.

16. Alice Fielder® Davidson (James Andrew, 9)'. Born, 19 Mar 1896, in
Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Died, 1 Jun 1976, in Ordway, CO. Burial in Bryan, TX.

Called Fielder, she was the family red head. She was a widow for many
years. She had a very pleasant disposition, and the author greatly enjoyed
Visiting her home in Ordway, Colo. as an adult.

She married Neil Zuber. Born in TX. Died in Ordway, CO. Occupation:
Agriculturist.

Said to have had a fine tenor voice, he worked as a produce inspector for
the railroad in Little Rock, Ark., and Ordway, Colorado. Children:

i. Fielda Jane® Zuber®>. Born in Little Rock, AR. Residence in
Tams, FL. Occupation: Aduin.Asst. She married Hiran Curtis
"Speed”

The redheaded cousin. A little older, and a Tittle more
defiant of authority than the author during our youth. A
bubbly, outgoing, dynamic person, she is married to the world’s
quietest human being,
i1, Neil Zuber Jr. "Dan"**. Born in Little Rock, AR. Residence in
Seattle, WA. Occupation: Dept.Storefxec.
27 iii. James Zuber AID "Jim".
iv. Margaret Ann Zuber.

17.  John Bryan® Davidson (James Andrew, 9)'. Born, 29 Sep 1900, in Detroit,
Lamar Co., AL. Died, 14 Sep 1981, in Crestview, FL. Burial: 1981, in Vernon,
Lamar Co., AL.

Easily one of the gentlest, kindest, most concerned men who ever lived.
Coach and principal at several Alabama and Florida high schools. The Stadium at
Millport, AL., where he coached early in his career, is named for him. John had
an athletic scholarship to the University of Alabama. He was somewhat hard of
hearing because a tombstone fell on him while he and his brothers and sisters
were playing in the cemetary. He was coach and principal at Dothan many years,
before moving to Crestview, Fla., where he retired.

He married Jimmie Nell Roberts®*, 3 Jun 1928, in Vernon, Lamar Co., AL.
Born in Vernon, Lamar Co., AL. Died, Sep 1993, in Miami, Dade Co., FL. Burial
in Vernon, Lamar Co., AL. Resided: before 1993, in Crestview, FL. Resided:
1993, in Houston, TX. Occupation: DryCleaningStore.

Her father was a prominent physician in Vernon, AL., and she was one of
her husband John’s high school students. While living in Dothan she operated a
dry cleaning business. She and John resided in Crestview, Fla. for many years.
Following the death of her husband, she visited son John B. in Houston and fell
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111 during the visit, was hospitalized, and later moved to an assisted care
facility there. Following the death of her son, John B., of which she was not
told because of her poor health, she was moved to Miami by her daughter, Jane
Nell, and passed away within a short time. Children

i. Jane Nell° Davidson. Born, circa 1943, in Slocum, AL. Residence
in Miami, FL. Occupation: Nurse/pathology
For many years a nurse in Minnessota, I understand that
she is an executive at the University of Miami, perhaps at the
hospital.
2 4. John Bryan Davidson Jr.

18. Grace Lenora® Davidson (James Andrew, 9)*°. Born, 25 Apr 1902, in
Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Died, 1 Mar 1974, in Decatur, Morgan Co. Al. Burial: 4
Mar 1974, in Branyon Plot, City Cemetary, Fayette Al. Census: 1910, in Marion
Co., AL. Census: 1920, in Marion Co., AL.

Grace attended Florence State Teachers College, (Then Florence Normal
School) where she received her elementary teachers certificate. Until her
marriage she taught in rural schools, including Arley, in Winston County, where
<he was nearly fired for insisting that the children should bathe during the
winter months, and also at Wesley Chapel in Fayette County with her good friend
Lila Speed. She told that she was a very good basketball player in high school
She was a friendly, well-read, and outgoing person, and very devoted to her
husband and family, Her hair became snow-white when in her late twenties or
early thirties, and she was addicted to Coca-Cola. A bit of a hypochondriac
<he was never without some mysterious malady which prevented her participation
in some things but not in others. She was probably the world's best cook, next
{0 Madge. She had a keen sense of humor, and was a very gracious and giving
Tady. 1'm convinced she grieved herself to death after Walter passed away
although the death certificate indicated that she had a number of strokes.

She married Walter Oren Holliman Sr.*°, son of Moses Jefferson Holliman
"M, J." and Elizabeth Wilson "Lizzie", 1 Oct 1925, in Montgomery, Montgomery
Co., AL. Born, 21 Nov 1899, in Kennedy, Fayette Co., AL. Died, 3 Nov 1973, in
Fayette, Fayette Co., AL. Burial: 5 Nov 1973, in City Cemetary, Fayette AL
Census: 1900, in Kennedy, Fayette Co., AL. Census: 1920, in Kennedy, Fayette
Co., AL. Occupation: Accountant.

Parent Ahf. 1

Attended the University of Alabama and Birmingham Southern College. About
5-11 in height, slender in build, he was as strong as an ox, and his favorite
pastime was gardening. Somewhat shy and retiring, he had few close friends. He
fnd Grace had each other, and that was all they seemed to need. He taught
School at Wesley Chapel in Fayette County in 1919-20, and announced he would
vather work in a saw mill than do that again. However, at the Blakeney Family
Reunion in 1993, the author met two women who had been taught both by him and
my mother at Wesley Chapel School, where my parents met. One of the ladies
admitted to having a school-girl crush on my father, who she described as a
“wonderful man” .

Hie then worked as a bookkeeper for Tennessee Coal, Iron and Railroad
Company for some twenty years before accepting a position as an Inventory
Control Analyst for Carbide and Carbon Nuclear Corporation in Oak Ridge, Tenn.,
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where he participated in the development and construction of the Atomic Bomb
during W I1. After his retirement they moved to Millport, Al., near his
brother Felix, and he contracted the construction of a nice home there. He was
not a good comunicator, and seldom revealed his thoughts to anyone except his
wife, but he was a very sentimental person, and tears always filled his eyes
when’ it came to say goodbye after a visit. During the depression years he, as
others, had a very hard time of it, moving to Palmerdale, near Birmingham, so
he could have a few acres to farm to supplement his earnings, which, as 1
remember, were about $80.00 a month in the late thirties. After he developed
cancer of the colon, he was immensly concerned for the security and well-being
of Grace. He purchased a new mobile home from my company which was built and
delivered to Shelbyville, Tenn., so that John could keep an eye on his mother.
John and I arrived in Fayette the day he died, having come to move them to
Tennessee the following day.

See census information 1900, 1910, 1920 under Moses J. Holliman.
Children:

29 i. Walter Orien® Holliman Jr. "Walt".
30 Norma Jean Holliman "Sis".
31 iii. John Bryan Holliman.

19. Madge Stanley” Davidson (James Andrew, 9)°7. Born, 2 Jun 1906, in
Detroit, Lamar Co., AL. Died, 4 Oct 1979, in Fayette, Fayette Co., AL.

She was a well loved and active member of Fayette society, once named
Mother of the Year. Her home was the gathering place for all of her relatives
and many friends. She was loving, but ran a tight ship, as well she might with
four active boys in her household. Her mother and Genie lived with her during
their final years.

She married*® Max Hammond Branyon®®, son of Dr. Arthur Curtis Branyon,
M.D. and Martha Savannah Wilkerson, 18 Jun 1928, in Birmingham, Jefferson Co.,
Al. Born, 25 Jul 1905, in Kingsville, AL. Died in Fayette, AL. Occupation:
Merchant .

Son of a respected physician, Max was a state Legislator, and served as a
Captain in the Military Police for the U. S. Army during World War II. A
respected businessman, he was a partner with his brother Curt in the Sinclair
0i1 dealership, and later operated the Western Auto Store in Fayette. Friendly
and gregarious, he was a noted and devoted fisherman. Children:

32 i. James Curtis® Branyon.
33 ii. Max Hammond Branyon Jr.
E William Monroe Branyon.
35 Hugh Stanley Rranyon.

20.  Norma Lee® Davidson (James Andrew, 9)'. Born, 28 Jul 1909, in Guin,
Marion Co., AL. Died, 22 Sep 1994, in Bunkers Cove Rd, Panama City, FL. Burial
in Greenwood Cem., Panama City, FL. Occupation: Tcacher.

Norma attended Florence State Teachers College, then taught at Eufaula
before marrying into one of that city’s leading families. She was a spirited,
active and very vivacious lady with many friends, until she suffered from
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Alzheimer’s disease in her last years. She passed away at her residence on
Bunker’s Cove Road in Panama City. My sister, Norma Jean, adored her, and lived
with them in Eufaula for some time.

She married John Seab Espy”°. Born in Eufaula, AL. Died, 12 Dec 1995, in
Panama City, FL. Occupation: Trucking Exec. Children:

36 i. Norma Ann® Espy.
37 ii. Fleda Jane Espy.

21, Col. Richard Percy® Davidson (James Andrew, 9)*. Born, 6 Mar 1911, in
Guin, Marion Co., AL. Died, 2 Jan 1969, in Walter Reed, Hospital, Washington,
DC. Burial: 1969, in Greensboro, AL. Occupation: U.S-Army WWII.

Called Percy by his brothers and sisters, he later preferred "Dick" or
Richard. The youngest of thirteen children, sired when his mother was 43 and
his father 58. He retired as a Colonel in the Army Corps of Engineers, having
served with distinction in the Pacific during World War II, receiving several
medals. He was featured in a "Readers Digest" article during the war which told
of the trials he faced when building an airport at Tacloban in the Phillipines,
with carrier based planes making emergency landings before the field was
completed. He graduated from the University of Alabama, where he played End on
the varsity football team, and had some sort of romance with Veronica Lake,
later a famous movie star during the war years. He had a pleasant personality,
and was very outgoing. Following college, he served as an officer in the
Civilian Conservation Corps in Texas. He served on active duty beginning in
1941 at Brownwood Texas, Australia, all through the Pacific Campaign including
the Phillipines, at Ft. Belvoir, VA; Ft. Gordon, GA.; Command and General Staff
School at Ft. Levenworth, KS; Garrison Dam, ND., Nouasseur, French Morocco,
Staff College at Norfolk, VA, The Pentagon, Thule, Greenland, as District
Engineer for NC, and at Redstone Arsenal, AL.

He married®’ Lutie Foster James®”, 19 Jul 1938 (?), in Greensboro, AL.
Born in Greensboro, AL. Died in Greensboro, AL. Children:

38 i. Winifred Caller® Davidson.
39 ii. Mary Foster Davidson.
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22.  James Middleton® Sizemore "Doc"**. Born, 1909, in Guin, Marion Co., AL
Died in Birmingham, Jefferson Co., AL. Occupation: Businessman

Typical of his clan, he was tall, slender, quiet, gentle and intelligent
He lived with the authors family for some time after he finished college, and
he and his bride Margaret, a distant cousin, lived next door after their
marriage. Since he was some 18 years older than I, I had little contact with
him after that.

During WHIT he was employed by General Motors, and later was a trucking
company executive in Birmingham,

He married Margaret Davidson®*, daughter of Julius Weston Davidson and
Ruth Lee. Residence in Birmingham, AL. Occupation: University Dean.

Margaret was Dean of Women, and later Dean of Students, and finally
Assistant to the President and Director of the Division of Paralegal Studies at
Samford University in Birmingham, AL. Many years after the death of "Middleton”
or "Doc”, as I knew him, and "James" or "Jin" as his family knew him, she
remarried Edward Trent Douglass, Jr., an attorney in Birmingham. I understand
she now lives near her daughter in the suburbs of Atlanta.

Margaret had an AB in Languages and an MA in Education at Samford, a
Degre Normal from the University of Paris France, and a L.L.D from Jacksonville
State University 1979. She was made a Life Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts
in 1971.

Margaret had many other honors, and was published extensively in the
fields of Literature, Antiques, History, and Travel. She was Birmingham’s Woman
of the Year in 1962, and received the Founders Avard 1979 from Samford
Genealogical Institute. She belonged to numerous civic, patriotic and lineage
clubs and associations, and received many awards and honors from them.

She was respected as a Genealogist, and had done extensive work on the
Davidson Family. She told me her research was among her papers at Samford
University Library. I have found references in the cardfile, but those
particular files are missing for the last couple of years, so I have not had
access to her research. I have seen some of her hastily written pedigrees and
notes in posession of Anna Carter Johnson of Monroe, LA., which proved very
helpful, but which contained no documentation or source references. The
unpublished typescript about the Davidson Family by Lutie Davidson was based on
Margaret’s research, but was also not documented. Children

40 i. James Middleton” Sizemore Jr.
ii. Dr. Ruth Sizemore®>. Born in oirmingham, AL. Residence in
Atlanta, GA. She married Kenneth Rhey House.
1'have not met Dr. Ruth, but understand she lives in the
Atlanta area.
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23. Thomas Eugene® Sizemore®>. Born, 1913, in Guin, Marion Co., AL.
He married, first, Fay Hill. Children:
i. MWanda’ Sizemore®®.

He married, second, Ernestine Unknown surname.

24.  John Wayne® Davidson (James A. Jr. "Jim", 14)®°. Occupation:
Band Director.
He was at one time band director for one of the Towa Universities.

He married Unknown woman. Children:

i. Barry’ Davidson. Born, 12 Sep 1948.
ii. Jinmy Davidson. Born, 22 Apr 1950.

25.  Ann® Davidson (William Roy, 15)°”. Born in Bay City, TX. Died, circa 1991
(?), in New Haven, Conn. Occupation: Musician/teacher.

She married Jack Litten®®. Occupation: Musician. Children:

4 i. Linda” Litten.

26.  Barbara® Davidson (William Roy, 15)°”. Born in Bay City, TX. Resided,
1996, in St. Paul, MN. Resided in New Jersey. Resided in Los Angeles, CA.
Occupation: Artist.

1 was fortunate enough to live near Barbara and her first husband,
composer and conductor Dave Grusin, when they were a young married couple
Tiving in Littleton, Colorado in the mid- to late-fifties. It was during this
time that he received his big break as accompaniest for Andy Williams through,
the auspices of Erhyl Merman, and moved to New York. I believe they gave us
their washing machine at the time. In a recent conversation, she indicated that
she would soon move back to Los Angeles to be near her sons. Barbara was very
attractive back then, and I'm anxious to see if time has been as cruel to her
as it has to me.

7 She married, first, Albert Jacobs. Died in California. Children:

i. Joyan’ Jacobs. Born, 1964.
ii. Mary Genevive "Gigi" Jacobs. Born, 1568 (?). Residence in
Vermont .

She married, second, Dave Grusin®®. Born in Littleton, Arapahoe Co., CO.
Occupation: Composer,/Conduct .

Discovered by Ethel Merman while playing piano for a restaurant whose
waiters sang opera in Denver, Dave became first an accompanist for Andy
Willians, later becoming his musical director, then into the world of musical
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direction and composer for movies and television. Dave and Barbara lived near
the author in Denver and we often played bridge and visited. We inherited their
washing machine when Dave left to join Andy Williams in New York. His family
owned a jewelry store in Littleton, Colo. Children:

iii. Scott Grusin. Born, 1957, in New Jersey. Residence in Los
Angeles, CA. Occupation: Musician.

iv. Stuart Grusin. Born, 1961, in New Jersey. Residence in Los
Angeles, CA. Occupation: Musician.

She married, third, Colin West. Died, 1983 (?).

27.  James® Zuber AID "Jim". Born in Little Rock, AR. Residence in Seattle,
WA. Occupation: Designer.

Jim attended the University of Colorado, graduating in interior design.
He and Janet are a congenial, hig.ly intelligent family with an interest in
most everything. They lived in Alabama for a couple of years in the mid 1970’s.

He married Janet Unknown surname. Children:
i. James’ Zuber.

Jennifer Zuber.
iii. John Zuber. He married Betsy Unknown.

42

28.  John Bryan® Davidson Jr. (John Bryan, 17). Born, 1945, in Dothan, AL.
Died, Sep 1993, in Crestview, FL. Burial in Mobile, AL. Resided in Houston, TX.
Occupation: 0ilCoEngineer.

Following College he was an executive with an oil company. He was
transferred from Bartlesville, OK, to Houston, TX not long before his sudden
death. He died of a heart attack at his parent’s home in Crestview while having
a garage sale to close out his father’s estate.

He married Beverly Loyd. Children:

i. Jennifer Leigh’ Davidson.
ii. John Bryan Davidson I11.

29.  Walter Orien® Holliman Jr. "Walt®. Born, 4 May 1927, in Birmingham,
Jefferson Co., AL°®. Residence in 2601 Chandalar, Lane, Pelham AL 35124.
Military Sv in W II, U.S. Navy. Occupation: Mfg.Exec/Realtor.

Active in Boy Scouts as a youth, he rose to Life Scout, Senior Patrol
Leader, Jr. Assistant Scoutmaster. Enlisted in U. S. Navy at age 16 during
World War II, on Oct 27,1943. "Boot Camp” at Pensacola, then Aviation Ordnance
School and Radar Operators School at NATTC, Norman, Okla; Naval Air Gunner’s
School, Purcell, Oklahoma; Naval Air Operational Training, Banana River, Fla.;
Receiving Station, Norfolk, VA.; Patrol Bombing Squadron 74 (Martin Mariner
-PBM -Flying Boats) for anti-submarine, convoy escort and air-sea rescue





image83.jpeg
38 10 MAR 1997 THE DAVIDSON ANCESTORS

SIXTH GENERATION
operations at Norfolk Va.; Elizabeth City, NC; Coco Solo, Panama Canal Zone;
Galapagos Islands; Guantanamo Bay, Cuba. Service number 605-96-21. Discharged
at NAS Memphis, TN. May 7, 1943. Ratings held: Apprentice Seaman, Seaman Second
Class, Seaman First Class (AOM), Aviation Ordnanceman 3rd class, Aviation
Ordanceman 2nd. Also rated as Combat Air Crewman and Naval Air Gunner. Attended
University of Tennessee at Knoxville, majoring in Philosophy with a Political
Science Minor 1946-1951. Hydraulic Test technician, Boeing Airplane Co.,
Wichita, KS.; Inventory Control Analyst, Beech Aircraft, Wichita, Ks. Inventory
Control Supervisor, 0. A. Sutton Corp., Wichita, KS; General Supervisor.
Inventory Control and Scheduling, Titan Missle Program, Martin-Marietta,
Denver, CO; Materials Manager, Redman Industries, Inc., Grand Island, NE;
General Manager, Star Mobile Homes, Ottawa, Ks.; VP and Gen Mgr. Detroiter
Mobile Homes, Hutchinson, KS; Vice President and Director of Operations,
Winston industries, Inc, Double Springs, Al.,a manufacturer of mobile homes and
furniture which qrew to 16 factories and over 3,000 employes under his
management. Tiring of constant travel and back-woods Alabama, he became a stock
broker with Merrill Lynch, Birmingham, Al.; Vice President, Nirector of
Operations, Centurion Internatinal, Waco, TX. Real Estate Broker, Birmingham
AL. Member Mensa International, BPOE, American Legion, Veterans of Foreign
Vars, the Methodist Church. Past president, People to People, Parents Without
Partners, Birmingham Commercial Real Estate Club, etc

He married, first, Mary Lillian Mason, 1949, in Oak Ridge, Anderson Co.,
N. Born in Fayetteville, TN.

He married, second, Sarah Edwards Wentworth, daughter of Harold Edwards
Wentworth and Nora Brooks, 6 Jun 1952, in Oak Ridge, Anderson Co., TN. Divorce,
Jan 1969, in Hutchinson, Reno Co., KS. Born, 11 Nov 1929, in Winchester, KY.
Residence in Emporia, Lyons Co., KS. Occupation: Lic.Prac.Nurse. Children:

43 i. Lynn Brooks’ Holliman
ii. Bryan Walter Holliman®’. Born, 8 Feb 1957, in Wichita,
Sedgewick Co., KS. Residence in Rt. 5, Box 178D, Logansport, IN
46947. Occupation: Mfg.Executive. He married®” Debra Lee
Dillman "Debbie”, daughter of Ronald Dillman and Janet Elaine
Rhinebarger, 24 Apr 1993, in Brethren Church, 12 Mile, Cass
Co., IN.

Bryan began working in the factory at Modine
Manufacturing Co. in Emporia, KS while working toward his BA
degree at Emporia State University, and was promoted to Foreman
while still in college. Following his graduation he was
promoted to Quality Control Manager and transferred to
Logansport, Ind. He has since been made Production
Control/Purchasing Manager. Following his marriage to Debbie,
at which his brother Paul served as Best Man, the newlyweds
honeynooned in Hawaii. Bryan is the game, civil war, and
railroad specialist in the family, as well as being addicted to
such sports as jogging, volley ball and bicycling. Following
their marriage, they are to Tive in Debbie’s home in the
country, about’7 miles northeast of Logansport. He is about 6
ft 2, with brown hair.
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a4 iii. Paul Scott Holliman.
a5 iv. Ann Elizabeth Holliman.

He married, third, Patricia Poorman, 1971, in Hutchinson, Reno Co., KS
Occupation: Teacher.

He married, fourth, Alice Abel Kemp, 1974, in Birmingham, Jefferson Co.,
Al. Born in Towson Co., MD.

At last report Alice had her PhD and was a professor at the University of
New Orleans. She had three children by her previous marriage.

He married, fifth, Sandra Jean Holsombeck Sorrow RN, daughter of Audice
Holsombeck <Holdsombeck> and Ruth Mildred Stimson, 5 Nov 1977, in Birmingham,
Jefferson Co., AL. Mar License, 3 Nov 1977, in Jefferson Co., AL. Born, 24 Dec
1936, in Flint, MI. Residence in 2601 Chandalar, Lane, Pelham, Al 35124
Occupation: SalesRepr.

Born in Michigan, a lot of us are glad she made her way back to Alabama
She attended Ramsey High School and still remains very close to her old schoo
mates. She attended the University of Alabama for a couple of years, working to
support herself. She was a Registered Sales Assistant for Merrill Lynch for
several years, spent a number of years as a secretary in the insurance
business. She had always had a hankering to get into sales, and was finally
able to do so as a sales representative for Electronic Engineers/Muzak in
Birmingham where she won many sales acheivement awards. While she was the best
sales agent for the company, she felt drained because the business is, by it’s
nature, cold calls and prospecting, she decided to become a nurse, and received
her Registered Nurses License in July 1996

She is a devoted friend, wife, mother and grandmother who still Tikes a
little adventure now and then.

30.  Norma Jean® Holliman "Sis". Born, 12 Feb 1929, in Birmingham, Jefferson
Co., AL. Died, 1 Dec 1965 (?), in Oak Ridge, Anderson Co., TN. Burial: 3 Dec
1965, in Oak Ridge, Anderson Co., TN. Occupation: Secretary.

Surely the sweetest, kindest, most generous person who ever lived, and a
Tot of fun to be around. Dying of cancer, she was determined to see the author
one final time, and at the time I had no idea of the seriousness of her
i11ness, which I had been led to believe was in remission. As i11 as she was,
she insisted on making the long drive to Nebraska for a visit. After each
little time of activity, it was necessary for her to rest. Nevertheless, she
had it in her mind to see an old Indian Campground I had described, and
insisted on walking a couple of miles to see it, resting every twenty steps or
so. She died within a month of her visit. The church packed to overflowing at
her funeral. She was my best friend and I still miss her

She married, first, W. Price Richards in Oak Ridge, Anderson Co., TN.
Divorce, circa 1955 (?), in Oak Ridge, Anderson Co., TN. Born, circa 1928, in
Eufaula, AL. Residence in Eufaula, AL. Military Sv in U. S. Marines, WH II.
Occupation: PostOfficeClk. Children:
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under the parents record. If the individual is known to have
children there will also be an arabic number, assigned
sequentially, which will identify that individual in the next
generation, where his biography and issue will be given.
Persons who are direct ancestors of Elfleda Curtis and James
A. Davidson will have their biograph printed twice, once as a
descendant in their parent’s family, and once as a spouse in
their mate’s family. The children of each marriage will print out
only in the husband’s biography.
Where the ancestry of an individual is unknown or uncertain,
I have attempted to show the possible ancestors in the general
area at that time to help others who may continue this work.
Where there are conflicting opinions, I have endeavored to make
the uncertainty known and outline the options.
There are certain things to remember in studying this
genealogy, as with any other:
1. People usually married near neighbors. They had no hot
rods or street cars, just an old mule or their bare feet.
2. Widows, unless very wealthy, usually remarried very
quickly. The same was true of men with young children. What
would you do if you had a bunch of kids and a farm in the
wilderness?
3. Women had few rights. Once they were married they came
under the laws of Coverture and were considered one with
their husband. When they married or remarried the new huband
had almost absolute control over any property they may have
brought to the marriage once a living child was born. Widows
did have dower rights, which were usually fully protected.
4. Where there is no mention of Revolutionary War Pension
records for a veteran of that struggle it is probably
because both he and his wife had died before the pension act
was passed in 1832.
5. The court houses in many counties were burned during the
Civil War, and afterwards by accident, resulting in partial
to total loss of public records in many places, including
many of the counties, particularly in Alabama, Tennessee,
and South Carolina.
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46 i. Karen Diane’ Richards.

She married, second, Robert Whitaker, circa 1960 (?), in Oak Ridge,
Anderson Co., TN. Born, circa 1925 (?), in Anderson Co., TN. Residence in
Solway, Anderson Co., TN. Occupation: Barber. Children:

ii. Michael Whitaker "Mike". Born in Oak Ridge, Anderson Co., TN.
Residence in Knoxville, Knox Co., TN.

31.  John Bryan® Holliman. Born, 12 Feb 1937, in Birmingham, Jefferson Co.,
AL. Residence in Flat Creek, TN. Occupation: Cert.Publ.Acct.

John attended High School in Oak Ridge, TN, then Lincoln Memorial
University and Tenn. Polytechnic Institute in Cookville, where he received a
degree in accounting. After graduation he joined Ernst and Ernst and received
his CPA in Shelbyville, TN. Some time later, he and other employees formed a
partnership and bought out E & E. John recently sold his interest in that firm
and has his own office in Shelbyville, where his daughter Alicia assists in his
bus iness.

John was the only red-headed Holliman, but also had the Holliman genes
that produce baldness, so most of his hair is his now graying beard. He is also
the only Holliman who is into BMW motorcycles.

He and Oneida Rose, his significant other, now live just south of
Lynchburg, the home of Jack Daniels whisky.

He married Rita McNamee, circa 1960 (?), in Oak Ridge, Anderson Co., TN.
Divorce, circa 1988 (?), in Shelbyville, TN. Born, 1939 (?), in New York, NY.
Residence in Shelbyville, Bedford Co., TN. Occupation: Housewife. Children:

i. Alicia’” Holliman. Born, 6 Nov 1960, in Shelbyville, TN.
Residence in Shelbyville, TN.
ii. Katherine Holliman "Kathy". Born, 29 Dec 1961, in Shelbyville,
TN. Residence in Shelbyville, TN.
a7 iii. Michael Holliman "Mike".

32.  James Curtis® Branyon®>. Born, 14 Jun 1929, in Jasper, Walker Co., AL.
Residence in Gulf Shores, AL. Occupation: USNavyRet.

James attended the U. S. Naval Academy where he recived a BS degree, and
served for some years as a naval officer. Was an executive for the Reynolds Co.
in Louisville, KY., until his retirement at Gulf Shores where he engages in a
Tot of golf. If he’s anything like his father, he probably fishes a lot.

He married Myra Linda Connel1°, daughter of William Martin Connell and
Betty Hodge McCarthy, 20 Jun 1953, in Fayette, Fayette Co., AL. Born, 26 Oct
1930, in Fayette, Fayette Co., AL. Residence in Gulf Shores, AL.

Myra received her BS degree from the University of Alabama. Children:

i. Linda Ann’ Branyon®. Born, 9 May 1954, in Tulsa, OK. She
married Brantley K. Harmes, 6 Jun 1976.
Linda received her BA Degree from the University of
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Indiana, and a MS from Virginia Commonwealth University.

Mary Suzanne Branyon.

James Curtis Branyon Jr.

Jeffrey Richard Branyon. Born, 27 Jan 1962, in Phoenix, AZ.
He received his BS and MA degrees at Virginia Tech.

48
49

33.  Max Hammond® Branyon Jr.°°. Born, 31 Mar 1931, in Fayette, AL. Residence

in Orlando, FL. Occupation: Educator.
Knowr as "Brud”, he was the one who was most often in trouble due to his

mischeviousness and lack of fascination with authority. An ardent fisherman.
He married Sherri Ann Garrison. Born, 3 Jun 1939, in TX. Children:

i. Stephen Michael” Branyon. Born, 2 Jun 1957, in Pryor, OK

ii. Robert Max Branyon.
iii. Kyle Stanley Branyon.

34, William Monroe® Branyon. Born, 4 Oct 1933, in Fayette, AL. Residence in
Orando, FL. Occupation: Educator.

He married Betty Gage. Children:
i. Byron Wade’ Branyon.

ii. Bart Dewayne Branyon.
i1i. Breta Branyon.

35.  Hugh Stanley® Branyon®°. Born, 9 Mar 1939, in Fayette, AL. Residence in

Gulf Shores, AL. Occupation: Park Sup’t.
Hugh has been an official with the Alabama State Park system for many

years, and manages Gulf Shores State Park.
He married Carol Wemzel. Residence in Gulf Shores, AL. Children:

Madge Allison” Branyon. Born, 1 Oct 1971. Residence in Gulf

Shores.., AL.
Bethany Leigh Branyon. Born, 12 Aug 1975. Residence in Gulf

Shores,, AL.

i
ii.

36. Norma Ann® Espy®’. Born in Eufaula, Al. Residence in Pensacola, FL.
Norma Ann holds a Doctor’s Degree in Physical Therapy from the University

of South Alabama and teaches.
She married, first, George Phillips. Children:

50 i. Allyson” Phillips.

She married, second, Clem Whitamore.




image87.jpeg
42 10 MAR 1997 THE DAVIDSON ANCESTORS

SIXTH GENERATION

37. Fleda Jane® Espy®®. Born in Eufaula, AL. Resided, 1996, in 132 Queen
Circle, Panama City, FL. Occupation: Teacher.

She married Jeff Gillard. Residence in Panama City, FL. Children:

i. Amy Lee” Gillard®. Residence in Panama City, FL.

38. Winifred Caller® Davidson (Col. Richard Percy, 21)”°. Born, 7 Nov 1941,
in Brownwood, TX. Residence in Greensboro, AL.

She married”® Nicholas Hamner Cobb”*, 22 Aug 1964 (?). Occupation:
Attorney. Children:

i. Lutie Foster” Cobb’”. Born, 8 Oct 1969, in Ft. Lee, VA.
Residence in Greenshoro, AL.
ii. Eliza Tunstall Cobb’>. Born, 26 Sep 1974, in Druid City Hosp.,
Tuscaloosa, AL. Residence in Greensboro, AL.
i4i. Nicholas Hammner Cobb Jr.”*. Born, 29 Sep 1977, in Druid City
Hosp., Tuscaloosa, AL. Residence in Greensboro, AL.

39. Mary Foster® Davidson (Col. Richard Percy, 21)’*. Born in Nouasseur,
French Morroco. Residence in Tuscaloosa, AL.
Mary was adopted while her father was stationed in French Morocco.

She married, first, Michael Combs’®, 15 Mar 1972. Born in Uniontown, AL.

She married’®, second, Robert Charles Ryan’®, 10 May 1978. Born in
Huntsville, AL. Residence in Tuscaloosa, AL. Children:

i. Robert Davidson” Ryan’”. Born, 9 Aug 1980, in Tuscaloosa, AL.
Residence in Tuscaloosa, AL.

ii. Joseph James Ryan’®. Born, 21 Oct 1983, in Tuscaloosa, AL.
Residence in Tuscaloosa, AL.
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40.  James Middleton’ Sizemore Jr. (James Middleton "Doc", 22)*°. Born in
Birmingham, Jefferson Co., AL. Residence in Montgomery, AL. Occupation:
Lawyer/Admin.

He and his sister are among the few Davidson Cousins I have not met.
Under the Guy Hunt Administration, James or "Jin" was in charge of
recruiting Industry and Development for the State of Alabama. According to Bill

Sizemore he is now in private practice of Law in Montgomery.

He married "Stevie" Unknown surname. Children:

i. Rebecca® Sizemore®>.

41. Linda’ Litten®’. Residence in London, England.
She married Unknown Lottimar®’. Children:

i. Jonathan® Lottimar.
ii. Kate Lottimar.

42, Jennifer’ Zuber (James AID "Jim", 27).
She married Paul Unknown. Children:
i. Alicia® Unknown.

Kevin Unknown.
iii. Carley Unknown.

43, Lynn Brooks” Holliman (Walter Orien Jr. "Walt", 29). Born, 21 Oct 1954,
in Wichita, Sedgewick Co., KS. Residence in P. 0. Box 134, Eskridge, KS 66423.
Occupation: Supervisor.

Lynn graduated from High School while 1iving with her Dad in Cullman, AL.
She attended Emporia State College for s couple of years, then began the
grueling job of a UPS driver for several years. She relocated to Colorado,
where she married Bob Hurst. She was a supervisor for a mational Physician
Referral Service. After Bob completed X-Ray Tech. School, they relocated to a
tiny town in Kansas. She now commutes to Kansas State College where she is
taking a carrer aimed at providing legal assistance for the battered and
abused. She loves back-packing and mountain trails. There are few of either in
Kansas.

She married Robert Hurst, 21 Oct 1987, in Lyons, CO. Born in AR.
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Residence in Eskridge, KS. Occupation: XRAYTech. Children:

i. Andrew® Hurst. Born, 28 Oct 1988, in Longmont, CO. Residence in
Eskridge, KS.

ii. Brooke Hurst. Born, 20 May 1991, in Longmont, CO. Residence in
Eskridge, KS.

44, Paul Scott’ Holliman (Walter Orien Jr. "Walt", 29). Born, 21 Sep 1959, in
Denver, 0. Resided, 1996, in 22027 Fresca, Valencia, CA 91354, Resided: 1985,
in Denver, CO. Resided: 1993, in 2426 LaSalle, Irving, TX 75062. Occupation:
Dist.Manager.

Paul is the happiest of people as Manager of Walt Disney’s movie
distribution business for Southern California and Hawaii. He and his family
were recently transferred to Burbank from Dallas, and they adapted to
California living in just a heartbeat. Paul began working in the movie business
while in high school, working at the concession stand at the drive-in. From
there he worked his way up the ladder, managing theaters in Emporia and Kansas
City, then becoming a Film buyer before signing on with Disney. Paul is much
into family things and adores his two daughters.

He married’” Teresa Disney, 10 Sep 1983, in Emporia, Lyons Co., KS. Born,
22 Jan 1961, in Emporia, Lyons Co., KS. Residence in Irving, TX. Occupation:
MotelMgnt. Children:

i. Kimberly” Holliman. Born, 4 Apr 1988, in Dallas, TX. Residence
in Irving, TX.

ii. Alison Holliman. Born, 8 Nov 1989, in Dallas, TX. Residence in
Irving, TX.

45.  Ann Elizabeth” Holliman (Walter Orien Jr. "Walt", 29). Born, 8 Apr 1960,

in Englewood, CO. Residence in 214 Hackberry, Americus, KS 66835. Occupation:
Teacher.

Ann is the rallying point for the Holliman clan. She and husband Mark and
the three girls seem to have the designated spot for reunions and
get-togethers. They live in Americus, a teeny town near Emporia, Kansas. Ann,
who graduated from Emporia State teaches 6th grade Science and English at
Council Grove, where she is the only teacher with a python in her classroom.
Ann is the unflappable one; the one most able to roll with the punches. Mark is
a supervisor for a diesel engine rebuilder in Emporia.

She married”” Mark Krueger, son of Walter Krueger and Verla Coffman, 24
Oct 1981, in Emporia, Lyons Co., KS. Born, 17 Nov 1958, in Emporia, Lyons Co.,
KS. Residence in Americus, Lyons Co., KS. Occupation. Manufacturing. Children:

i. Elizabeth Ann® Krueger "Beth". Born, 26 Jul 1987, in Emporia,
Lyons Co., KS. Residence in Americus, Lyons Co., KS.
ii. Erica Leigh Krueger. Born, 16 Aug 1991,  in Emporia, Lyons Co.,
KS. Residence in Americus, Lyons Co., KS.
iii. Paige Christine Krueger’®. Born, 15 Aug 1993, in Emporia, KS.
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46.  Karen Diane” Richards. Born in Eufaula, AL.

She married Dean Parmer in Eufaula, AL. Divorce in Eufaula, AL. Born in
Eufaula, AL. Children:

i. Jason® Parmer. Born in Eufaula, AL.
47. Michael” Holliman "Mike" (John Bryan, 31). Born, 20 Jun 1967, in
Shelbyville, TN. Residence in Shelbyville, TN.

He married Kimberly Ann Parker, Jun 1990, in Nashville, TN. Residence in
Shelbyville, TN. Children:

i. Amanda Shea® Holliman. Born, 17 Nov 1990, in Murfreesboro, TN.
Residence in Murfreesboro, TN.
ii. Julia Paige Holliian . Born, 12 Jul 1993, in Shelbyville, TN.

48.  Mary Suzanne” Branyon (James Curtis, 32)°°. Born, 21 Sep 1955, in
Portsmouth, VA.

Suzanne received a BS degree at Western Kentucky University, and her MA
at the University of NC.

She married Gary A. Palmer, 10 Oct 1981, in Unknown. Born, 31 Dec 1953,
in NY. Children:

Gregory Allen” Palmer®'. Born, 9 Aug 1984, in Unknown.
ii. Kimberly Lynn Palmer®®. Born, 13 Aua 1991. in Unknown.

49.  James Curtis’ Branyon Jr. (James Curtis, 32)°°. Born, 5 Sep 1957, in
Tuscaloosa, AL.
James received a BS degree at Virginia Tech.

He married Jan Marie McGuire, 21 Jun 1980, in Unknown. Born, 1 Oct 1958,
in VA. Children:

i. James Andrew® Branyon®°. Born, 9 May 1986, in Unknown
ii. Kyle Martin Branyon®. Born, 14 Jul 1988, in Unknown.
50. Allyson” Phillips.
She married William H. Stephens "Biil". Children:
i. John William® Stephens®”.
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NOTES AND REFERENCES
*Lutie Davidson & Margaret Sizemore Douglas, Davidson Family History,
(Typescript, unpublished), in custody of Walter Orien Holliman Jr. "Walt",
2601 Chandalar, Lane, Pelham AL 35124.
“Margaret Sizemore Douglas, "Davi(d)son Pedigree”
*1830 census York Co., SC.
1830 census of York Co., SC.
“"Davidson’s", & Rose Marie Smith, Lamar County AL..: A History to 1900,

(Vernon, AL., The author, 1987), in custody of Birmingham, AL, Library
(Southern History), Birmingham, A1. p. 47.

“per Family Bible, p/o John Coyce Wax, Amory, MS.

“Per Margaret Sizemore Douglas "Davi(d)son Pedigree.

“Per Margaret Sizemore Douglas "Davi(d)son Pedigree".

“Per Margaret Sizemore Douglas "Davi(d)son Pedigree”.

"°Margaret Sizemore Douglas "Davi(d)son Pedigree”.

**"Davidson’s", "Lamar Co." p. 105, 106, 116.

"“Recorded Monroe Co., MS 8 Mar. 1850.

"Mrs. R. B. Parker, The Eqerton Family, (Unpublished, Manuscript), in
custody of Walter Orien Holliman Jr. "Walt", 2601 Chandalar, Lane, Pelham
AL 35124 "Davidson’s”, and Will of Jeremiah "Jerry" Riggan.

*“Marr. record White Sept. 12 1834-Jan.31 1850 Monroe Co. MS p.930.

"Per Marker.

*“Anna Marie Carter Johnson Pedigree (CAP).

*Per Margaret Sizemore Douglas "Davi(d)son Pedigree”. Father’s will.
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*®Monroe County Book Committee, A History of Monroe County Miss., (n.p.,
Monroe County, Book Committee, n.d.) , in custody of Birmingham, AL,
Library (Southern History), Birmingham, Al. p.760; Will of Jeremiah
Riggan.

21850 & 1860 census Marion Co.

“°1850 and 1860 census Marion Co.

2lMargaret Sizemore Douglas "Davi(d)son Pedigree”. Father’s will 1856.

*Margaret Sizemore Douglas, "Davi(d)son Pegigree".

21850 and 1860 census.

241850, 1860 census.

“*Margaret Sizemore Douglas "Davi(d)son Pedigree”.

1860 census Marion Co., AL.

’Margaret Sizemore Douglas, "Davi(d)son Pedigree.”.

%per Margaret Sizemore Douglas, "Davi(d)son Pedigree”.

2°1860 census [tawamba Co., MS p. 342.

3°1860 census Itawamba Co., MS p. 342.

31upavidson’s", p.1-4. Lon Will Lincoln, Joseph Alexander, Tanner,
(Unpublished, MSS), in custody of Columbus,Miss. Public Library, Columbus,
Miss. p.55. “Lamar Co." p. 47.

*2peath Certificate # 24317. Guin, Marion Co. Al. June 28, 1920.

3244 page 37 Lamar Co. AL at home of her mother, Columbia White.

>*Lincoln:"Alexander”, p. 54. "Davidson’s", p.1-4.

>°At home of Grace Holliman.

>¢Davidson’s", p. 6.

*7per William Roy Sizemore, his son, verbal, Feb 1996.

2 8.

>°"Davidson’s", p. 8

.10,
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NOTES AND REFERENCES

**Ibid. p. 12.
p. 12

b

“*Verbal, Dtr. Jane Nell Davidson.

“Family Bible, p/o John Holliman, Flat Creek, TN.
““Family Bible p/o John Holliman, Flat Creek, TN.
“7"Davidson’s", p.15.

*®Ibid. p.15. Married by Rev. W. I. Daniel.

. p. 15. "Hist. of Fayette County” p. 220.

id. p. 12 & Xmas Card from Fleda to author Dec 1996.
*'1bid. p. 17.
*2Ibid. p.17.

Spe 1L

*“Ibid. p.11.

®“Started as musical director for Andy Williams.

“%8irth certificate in author’s posession.

©*personal knowledge of author.

“2Witnessed by author.

“*"Davidson’s", p. 15. FGS by James and Myra Branyon 1/93.
©Dau. of Bill and Betty Connell.

©°F6S by James C. and Myra Branyon 1/1944.

°®"Davidson’s", p. 16.

©7904-438-3709.
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“*Xmas Card to author Dec 1996.

“°Xmas card 1996 from her mother to author.
7®"Davidson’s", p. 18.

7*Ibid. p. 18. Served in Viet Nam.

721bid. p. 18.

*Ibid. p.18.

74703 P. 18.

7#"Davidson’s", p..18.

7“Ibid. P. 18.

”’Author attended.

“®personal Knowledge.

7?Per John B. Holliman, Grandfather.
“°FGS by James C. and Myra Branyon 1/1994.
“'FGS by James C. and Myra Branyon 1/1994.

®2per Norma Ann Espy 11/15/94.
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